
 
REVISED AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – CITY HALL – 214 N. CENTER STREET 
JULY 16, 2018 

(Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

II. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
                       OLD BUSINESS 

a. Golf Carts Discussion (Parks and Recreation) 
b. Former WA Foster Survey (City Manager) 
c. Mowing Discussion (Public Works) 
d. Summer Feeding Program (Councilmember Foster)   

 

                       NEW BUSINESS 
e. Streetscape Project Update (Downtown Development)  
f. Parking Signs Removal for Downtown Area (Engineering) *Attachment Included  
 

III. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER ST. 
  Invocation (Pastor Rob Whitner, Generation Church) 

Pledge to the Flag 
 

IV. ROLL CALL 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 
A.1  Special Meeting Minutes of the City Council on May 14, 2018 
A.2  Special Meeting Minutes of the City Council on May 31, 2018  
   

VI. PRESENTATIONS 
B.  Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Bruce Kornegay as an Employee  
      of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 29 Years 
C.  Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Willette Davis as an Employee of   
      the City of Goldsboro for More Than 22 Years  
D.  Golden STAR Award Recipients (Human Resources) 
E.   Keys to Healing--Hug & Love Key (Mr. Bill Sutton)  

 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
F. Z-10-18  Lane Farms, Inc. – Southwest corner of Salem Church Road and US 70 Bypass 

(Planning) 
G. CU-6-18 Glenn Price –West side of Millers Chapel Road between US 70 East and Wilson Street 

(Planning) 
H. CU-7-18  Jay Patel – West side of Parkway Drive between Berkeley Boulevard and North Park 

Drive (Planning) 
 PLANNING COMMISSION EXCUSED 

I. Public Hearing to Consider the Financing of the Central Police and Fire Department Expansion 
and Renovations to Fire Station #4 (Finance)  

J. Public Hearing – Recommended 2018-19 Annual Action Plan (Community Relations) 
  

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (TIME LIMIT OF 3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER) 
 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (*Motion/Second--Roll Call) 
K. Z-9-18  Wayne County Development Alliance – East side of Patetown Road between North 

William Street and Stoney Creek (R-16 to I-2) (Planning) 
L. CU-4-18  Bobby Reavis – South side of US 70 West between US 117 and the Little River 

(Planning) 
M. CU-5-18  Darryl Floars Motor Cars – South side of US 70 West between US 117 and the Little 

River (Planning) 
N. Site, Landscape and Building Elevation Plans  - Davita Dialysis (Planning) 



O. Sale of Surplus Real Property Tax ID #3509-24-5448 Southeast Corner of East Walnut Street 
and Bright Street (Planning)  

P. Contract Award – Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation Formal Bid No. 2018-004 
(Engineering)  

Q. Budget Amendment - Outstanding Purchase Order Adjusting Entries (Finance)  
R. Goldsboro Tourism Council Appointment (City Manager)  
S. Departmental Monthly Reports 

X. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION (*Motion/Second) 
T. Right-of-way Reimbursement for Central Heights Realignment (Project U-5724) (Planning) 

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
U. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Barry Driscoll as an Employee of

the City of Goldsboro for More Than 12 Years 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN



Item No.____________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

JULY 16, 2018 – WORK SESSION 

SUBJECT:           Parking Signs Removal for Downtown Area 

BACKGROUND: The Downtown Area as defined by the borders of Ash 
Street to the North, Elm Street to the South, William Street 
to the East, and George Street to the West contains 
approximately 350 traffic signs.  Two categories of street 
signs make up over 50% of this total:  No Parking signs 
(94) and Limited-Time Parking signs (88).  Downtown 
Development, Planning and Engineering Departments 
undertook a joint effort to help determine how best to 
reduce this sign clutter and potentially reduce maintenance 
costs for these signs. 

DISCUSSION:        The City does not actively enforce timed parking spaces in 
the Downtown Area.  Without the enforcement component, 
timed spaces rely on individual driver decisions and, over 
time, typically lead to the signs being ignored.  It is 
proposed that all timed Limited-Time Parking Signs be 
removed from the Downtown Area. 

In many downtown areas, by ordinance, drivers are allowed 
to park in designated spaces only.  Therefore, parking 
outside of a clearly designated space is prohibited and No 
Parking signs can be redundant.  It is recognized, however, 
that strategic No Parking signs can serve as a deterrent and 
provide assistance to drivers.  Staff is recommending that 
approximately 54 of the 94 existing No Parking signs can 
be removed in the Downtown Area.  Locations where the 
signs would not be removed include the Wayne County 
Courthouse, Goldsboro Fire Department, the Goldsboro 
Police Department and the John Street area.   

RECOMMENDATION:     Staff is seeking a recommendation from City Council on 
what signs, if any, to remove in the Downtown Area as 
described above.  Depending on the recommendation, staff 
will begin work on sign removal and provide City Council 
with any necessary ordinance changes.     

ws Item e 



1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL HELD 
FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 BUDGET WORK SESSION 

MAY 14, 2018 

BUDGET WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, called a Special 
Meeting to discuss the proposed 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Budget in the Large Conference 
Room on the second floor of the City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, Goldsboro 
at 9:00 a.m. on May 14, 2018 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem David Ham  
Councilmember Antonio Williams 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Mark Stevens 
Councilmember Bevan Foster  
Councilmember Gene Aycock 

Call to Order.  Mayor Allen called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

Mr. Stevens shared we had not programmed this for Facebook Live, staff is set-up for 
that, we wanted Council to let us know if they would like to turn it on.  Councilmembers 
Foster and Williams stated they would like it on, however, majority of Council did not 
want it live at this time as there will be a public hearing at a later date when citizens 
could speak on the proposed budget.  

Adoption of the Agenda.  Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by 
Councilmember Stevens and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda. 

Ms. Kaye Scott, Finance Director, presented the following information on the proposed 
Budget for FY 2018-19: 

TOTAL BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18         FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 
ADOPTED        RECOMMENDED               DIFFERENCE 
$59,307,303 $61,446,562           $2,139,239 

BREAKDOWN BY FUNDS 
Funds  FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 Difference 
General Fund  $40,582,032 $40,805,271 $   223,239 
Stormwater Fund $  1,073,672             $  1,504,000 $   430,328 
Utility Fund  $16,574,693 $18,013,088 $1,438,395 
Downtown District Fund $       71,326 $       72,470 $       1,144 
Occupancy Tax Fund $  1,005,600 $  1,051,733 $     46,133 
       Totals $59,307,323             $61,446,562 $2,139,239 

Summary  
FY 2018-19 Budget 

Category General Stormwater Utility DGDC

Occupancy 

Tax Total

Salary/Benefits 25,876,541$   543,184$         3,709,976$      158,034$       30,287,735$      

Operational Costs 9,055,501        539,836          8,289,045         72,470          551,699    18,508,551$      

Debt Service 4,929,905        129,980          3,267,979         342,000    8,669,864           

Vehicle/Capital Outlay 943,324           291,000          2,746,088         3,980,412           

Total 40,805,271$   1,504,000$      18,013,088$    72,470$        1,051,733$   61,446,562$      

Item A.1 



2 
 

Operational Costs Summary  
FY 2018-19 Budget 

 
 
Budget Sections 

1. Revenues (General, Stormwater & Utility Funds) 
2. Agency Support 
3. Debt Service 
4. Positions 
5. Salary and Employee Benefits 
6. Departmental Requests 
7. Vehicle/Capital Requests 
8. DGDC/Occupancy Tax Fund 
9. Fund Balance 

 
General Fund Revenues 

 
 

 

Category General Stormwater Utility DGDC Occupancy Tax Total

Gasoline/Diesel Costs 860,000$           860,000$            

Auto Repairs/Parts 647,250$           647,250$            

Utilities/Telephone 1,164,126          830,212            1,994,338$         

Agencies 448,129             15,000                  463,129$            

Auto/Liab. Prem. 255,779             281,322            537,101$            

Service Fees to GF 2,869,532         2,869,532$         

Chemicals 879,500            879,500$            

Rent 9,275                    

Advertising 20,230          119,500                139,730$            

Other Op Costs 5,680,217          539,836            3,428,479         52,240          407,924                10,108,696$      

Total 9,055,501$       539,836$         8,289,045$      72,470$        551,699$             18,508,551$      

FY 17‐18 FY 18‐19

Adopted  Recommended

Budget Budget Difference

Taxes $16,338,000 $16,432,843 $94,843

Licenses	&	Permits 365,400 382,650 17,250
Business	Registration	Fee 35,000 34,000 (1,000)
							Permits 329,500 346,100 16,600

Revenue	Other	Agencies 17,796,802 17,955,338 158,536
					 State‐Collected	Revenues
										Sales	Tax 8,587,792 9,200,876 613,084
										Utility	Franchise	Tax 2,850,800 2,737,866 (112,934)
										Powell	Bill 953,056 944,444 (8,612)
					Transportation	(NCDOT) 240,000 414,598 174,598
					NCDOT	Signal	Reimbursement 202,000 215,000 13,000

Charges	for	Services 4,629,630 4,694,440 64,810
					Refuse	Service	Charges 3,250,000 3,260,000 10,000
					Parks	&	Recreation	Fees 127,400 116,000 (11,400)
					Golf	Course	Fees 553,800 571,800 18,000
					Paramount	Theatre 170,000 170,000 0
					Event	Center	Rentals 92,000 95,000 3,000

Adopted  Recommended

Budget Budget Difference

Capital	Returns 304,200 138,500 (165,700)
					Investment	Earnings 19,000 38,500 19,500
					Sale	of	Property 245,000 50,000 (195,000)
					Equipment	Sales 40,000 50,000 10,000

Miscellaneous 1,148,000 1,201,500 53,500
				Salaries/Payroll	Attrition/Health 850,000 900,000 50,000

Fund	Balance	Withdrawal 0 0 0

			Total $40,582,032 $40,805,271 $223,239



3 
 

General Fund Revenue Growth 
 

 
 
AD VALOREM TAXES 
 

       Adopted FY 17-18     Recommended FY 18-19 
1. REAL ESTATE   $     14,278,400                           $    14,235,599 
2. VEHICLE               $       1,460,000                           $      1,500,000 
3. ONE-CENT TAX EQUALS  $          220,000                      $         220,000 
4. COLLECTION PERCENTAGE             97.81%                                 97.88% 

                     
5. TAX RATE PER $100  $                  .65       $                 .65 

 
 
Utility Fund Revenues 
 
 FY 17-18 

Adopted Budget
FY 18-19 
Recommended 
Budget  

 
 
Difference 

Charges for Services  $15,640,500 $16,778,500 $1,138,00
Current Water Charges 5,850,000 6,779,000 929,000 
Current Sewer Charges 7,900,000 7,800,000 <100,000> 
Late Payment Fees 225,000 235,000 10,000 
Service Penalty 110,000 130,000 20,000 
Taps 30,000 30,500 500 
Compost Revenue 35,000 60,000 25,000 
Backflow Inspection Fees -0- 4,500 4,500 

 
Capital Returns 21,193 37,900 16,707
Investment Earnings  13,293 31,000 17,707 
    

TIGER V Grant Reimb. 0 238,688 238,688
Gen. Loan Repayment 250,000 -0- <250,000>
Miscellaneous 200,000 430,000 230,000
Proceeds from Loan 463,000 528,000 65,000
 
Fund Balance Withdrawal  -0- -0- -0-
 
Total  $16,574,693 $18,013,088 $1,438,395

 
Utility & Refuse Rates 
 
WATER RATES (No Increase) 
(Per CCF) (Residential/Commercial)                             $  2.15                    $  2.15 
(Per CCF) (Industrial)                        1.59                                3.18 
(Per 1000 Gallons) Residential/Commercial)          2.87             2.87 
(Per 1000 Gallons) (Industrial)           2.13                                4.25 
Base Fee Increase (No Increase)                      $ 12.14                    $12.14 
  
SEWER RATES (No Increase) 
(Per CCF) (Residential/Commercial)                           $  4.65                             $  4.65 
(Per CCF) (Industrial)                      1.59                                 3.18 



4 
 

(Per 1000 Gallons) Residential/Commercial)                    4.17        8.34 
(Per 1000 Gallons) (Industrial)          5.57                          11.15 
 
REFUSE RATES  
Residential                                         $22.00                      $22.00 
Commercial (Dumpster)                            $  5.50/Cu.Yd.         $  5.50/Cu. Yd. 
Commercial (Roll-Out Containers)                           $40.50            $40.50 
                           (Additional Cart)                           $15.00            $15.00 
Reconnection Fee                      $10.00            $10.00 
 
*NOTE:  City is working with consultant on Industrial Water and Sewer Rate Assessment 
and will bring the results back to Council along with their recommendation on rates. 
 
Water/Sewer Rates Comparisons 

 
        
Stormwater Utility Fund 
Stormwater fee is used to repair and maintain drainage facilities that convey storm water; 
thereby, improving drainage flow, and in many cases the water quality of storm water. 
The City started billing for single family residential units at $4.50 per month in July 2017 
with most multi-family and businesses being billed based on their individual impervious 
area or ERU in May 2018. 
 

 
 
User Fees Self-Sufficiency 

 
 
 
 
 

Monthly

Residental

Municipality Water Sewer Total Refuse Fee

Kinston 41.86$               38.33$           80.19$     27.03$          

Wilson 33.87$               45.00$           78.87$     17.50$          

Smithfield 30.79$               46.22$           77.01$     16.00$          

Mt. Olive 22.81$               51.00$           73.81$     16.60$          

Jacksonville 25.94$               47.05$           72.99$     5.00$             

Greenville 27.80$               40.00$           67.80$     15.75$          

Goldsboro 26.48$               31.02$           57.50$     22.00$          

Rocky Mt. 21.57$               28.50$           50.07$    

Average Cost  28.89$               40.89$           69.78$    

Wayne Water 36.27$               36.27$    

Average Consumption (5,000 gallons)

Revenues/Expenditures/Debt FY 2016‐17 FY 2017‐18 FY 2018‐19 Over/Under

Water 101.33% 100.79% 111.61% 841,272         

Water Reclamation 90.08% 88.52% 92.39% (754,750)        

Refuse 105.82% 99.29% 103.76% 118,041         

Golf Course 99.20% 79.26% 89.54% (66,829)          

Paramount (WITHOUT DEBT SVC.) 34.87% 36.56% 35.70% (306,133)        

Goldsboro Event Center (without 
debt) 38.32% 62.60% 66.02% (48,890)          



5 
 

AGENCY SUPPORT 

 
 
Council discussed agency requests.  The following changes were discussed: 

 Reducing the Arts Council to $25,000 
 Reducing the Wayne County Museum to $10,000 
 Reducing Waynesborough Park to $20,000 
 Look at appropriating $5,000 each to Rebuilding Broken Places, Boys & Girls 

Club, and HGDC Community Crisis Center.  
 
DEBT PAYMENTS AND BALANCES 
FY 2018-19 

 
 
Debt Payment Funding 
Fund        Amount 
General Fund   $4,929,905  
Stormwater Fund       129,980 
Utility Fund     3,267,979 
Occupancy Tax Fund            342,000 

FY 18-19 FY 18-19
FY 17-18 Requested Recommended

Fund Agency Allocation Amount Amount
General 11 7310 4916 Chamber of Commerce 20,000.00$           20,000.00$           20,000.00$              

11 7310 4917 Wayne County Alliance 25,000.00$           25,000.00$           25,000.00$              
11 7310 4932 Literacy Connections 7,000.00$             10,000.00$           10,000.00$              
11 7310 4970 Butterball Economic Incentive 4,320.00$             -$                       -$                        
11 7310 6993 Boys & Girls Club -$                      15,000.00$           -$                        
11 7310 6994 Arts Council 30,000.00$           30,000.00$           30,000.00$              
11 7310 9933 WAGES - Nutrition for the Elderly 20,000.00$           20,000.00$           20,000.00$              
11 7310 9933 WAGES - Senior Companion Prog. -$                      20,000.00$           -$                        
11 7310 9937 W.A.T.C.H. 20,000.00$           60,000.00$           20,000.00$              
11 7310 9947 Wayne County Historical Museum 15,000.00$           20,000.00$           15,000.00$              
11 7310 9951 Wayne Uplift -$                      10,000.00$           -$                        
11 7310 9952 Communities in Schools 15,000.00$           20,000.00$           15,000.00$              
11 7310 9979 Waynesborough Park 25,000.00$           42,950.00$           25,000.00$              
11 7310 9980 Goldsboro/Wayne Transportation 250,000.00$         258,129.00$         258,129.00$            
11 7310 9996 W.I.S.H. 5,000.00$             10,000.00$           10,000.00$              

436,320.00$         561,079.00$         448,129.00$            

Community 22 Boys & Girls Club 8,000.00$             
Development Literacy Connections 5,000.00$             

Consumer Credit Counseling 5,000.00$             
W.I.S.H. 15,000.00$           
WAGES 20,000.00$            
Wayne Uplift 5,000.00$              
Wayne Community College (WORKS 8,000.00$              
Rebuilding Broken Places 4,425.00$              

70,425.00$            -$                       -$                         

TOTALS 506,745.00$          561,079.00$          448,129.00$            

Code

FY 2018-19 Agency Requests

Principal/Interest 
Payment

Outstanding Balance 
(7-1-18)

1 SANITARY SEWER BONDS             1,424,145$         9,223,600$                 
2 STREET BONDS 735,044             4,806,400                   
3 RECREATION BONDS 166,813             2,850,000                   
4 STATE REVOLVING LOAN                                  

     PROGRAM – WATER PLANT 600,650             6,909,938                   
7 STONEY CREEK (SRF) LOAN 228,125             3,193,623                   
8 PHASE 4 SEWER REHAB. (SRF) LOAN 117,846             6,268,382                   
8 CITY HALL 232,386             742,800                      
9 CITY HALL – PHASE II/STREETSCAPE/AMR             397,382             1,388,000                   
10 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT LOAN 249,564             347,599                      
11 COUNTY OF WAYNE LOAN (MULTI-SPORTS) 242,000             2,800,000                   
12 PARAMOUNT  THEATRE 409,273             1,308,200                   
13 TIGER LOAN (Streetscape/Transfer Facility/Police HVAC)              350,877             3,649,000                   
14 SETTLEMENT LOAN ($1.7M) 196,053             1,190,000                   
15 W.A. FOSTER/GCC LOAN 655,479             5,824,000                   
16 EASTERN REGIONAL LOAN (County) 127,375             127,375                      
17 AMI SYSTEM/VEHICLE LOAN 895,676             6,804,000                   
18 EQUIPMENT LOAN (2015) 369,208             725,000                      
19 EQUIPMENT LOAN (2016) 325,158             947,000                      
20 EQUIPMENT LOAN (2017) 499,925             2,225,000                   
21 IT/RADIOS/SOFTWARE LEASES 509,418             1,579,506                   
22 POLICE EVIDENCE/FIRE STATION RENOV. 87,467               -                             
23 TOTAL DEBT 8,819,864$         62,909,423$               



6 
 

CDBG         150,000 
Total    $ 8,819,864 
 
Possible New Debt Service 
General Fund 
 
 Police Evidence Room     $3,500,000 

   Issuance: August 2018 (FY 2018-19) 
   Amortization: 15 Year Level Principal 
   Interest Rate: 4.00% 
   First Interest: FY 2019 
   First Principal: FY 2020 
 
 Replace Fire Station #4 (Building Renovations) $   500,000 

   Issuance: August 2018 (FY 2018-19) 
   Amortization: 15 Year Level Principal 
   Interest Rate: 4.00% 
   First Interest: FY 2019 
   First Principal: FY 2020 
 
 Street Improvements Bonds       $4,500,000 

        (Bond Sale planned for July 2018)  
 
 IT Lease        $   400,000 

        (Planned for August 2018)           (Approximate Cost) 
 
Utility Fund 
 Water System Improvements     $3,610,000 

           Funding Date: TBD 
 Rate: 1.82% 
 Amortization: 20 Year Level Principal 
 Wastewater System Improvements    $1,235,100 

           Funding Date: FY TBD 
 Rate: 1.82% 
 Amortization: 20 Year Level Principal 
  
  Water Plant Expansion (Plate Setters)    $2,325,000 

  The City intends to submit an application for an SRF loan to fund this process. 
  Funding Date: FY TBD 
  Rate: 2.50% 
  Amortization: 20 Year Level Principal 
 
FY 18-19 (General/Utility Fund) 
 Equipment Loan          $819,234 

  

  
 
5 year loan – 1ST Yr. (GF – $62,650) (UF – $116,350) 
3% Estimated Interest Rate 
 
NEW POSITIONS ‐ RECOMMENDED 
GENERAL FUND: 
Position        Department    Salary and Benefits 

1. Senior Planner      Planning            $63,452         
                                                                                                           80% NCDOT Reimbursement 

Vehicle Loan List

Department Description Amount

Bldg Maint. (1) Bucket Truck 120,000          

Solid Waste (1) Crew Cab Pick‐Up Truck 29,000            

Solid Waste (1) Dump Truck 90,000            

Fire (1) Air Compressor 52,234            

Dist. & Coll. (1) Tandem Dump Truck 140,000          

Compost (1) Trommel Screen 235,000          

Compost (1) Heavy Duty Wheel Loader 153,000          

Total 819,234$        



7 
 

2. Stormwater Maint. Tech.  Stormwater             $39,645 
3. Biosolid Operator/Driver  Compost             $43,080 
4. Comm. & Creative Svc. Mgr.  Travel & Tourism           $24,453 (1/2 Yr.) 

 
POSITIONS NOT RECOMMENDED 
Position      Department    Salary and Benefits 

1. Sr. HR Analyst    Human Resources             $69,327 
2. Adm. Asst. III    IT               $39,820 
3. Computer Sys. Adm. I  IT               $63,452 
4. Computer Sys. Adm. II  IT               $72,486 
5. Sr. Fleet Mechanic  Garage               $51,043 
6. Bldg. & Grounds Super.  Bldg. & Grounds           $63,452 
7. Sign Technician   Engineering             $44,928 
8. Sr. Rec. Asst. – Adaptive Parks & Rec.             $44,928 
9. Sr. Program Manager  Parks & Rec.             $48,904 
10. Rec. Center Asst.  Parks & Rec.             $43,080   
11. Athletics Manager  Parks & Rec.             $48,904 
12. Sr. Park Technician  Parks & Rec.             $44,928 
13. Park Technician   Parks & Rec.             $38,050 
14. Park Technician   Parks & Rec.             $38,050 

 
 

 
 
Authorized Positions 

 
 

Note: Max. Authorized Positions in FY 2011-12 – 480 
 

Recommended

Position (From) Position (To) Department Salary (Savings) Increase

1 Web Dev./Comm. Sys Adm Programmer Analyst IT 3,737.00$                              

2 Serve/DBA Adm. Asst. IT Director IT 7,468.00$                              

3 Heavy Equip. Operators (3) Sr. Heavy Equip. Operators Solid Waste 14,764.00$                            

4 Equip. Operators (6) Heavy Equip. Operators Solid Waste 26,611.00$                            

5 Adm. Asst. III Executive Asst. Fire 4,796.00$                              

6 Finance Specialist Procurement & Coll. Specialist Finance ‐$                                         

7 Acctg. Specialist Sr. Accounting Specialist Finance 5,409.00$                              

Not Recommended

Position (From) Position (To) Department Salary (Savings) Increase

1 Theater Service Coordinator Theater Service Coordinator Parmount Theater 7,318.00$                              

2 Computer Sys. Adm. I Computer Sys. Adm I IT 2,731.00$                              

3 Computer Sys. Adm. II Computer Sys. Adm II IT 2,208.00$                              

4 Network Administrator Network Engineer IT 3,473.00$                              

5 Social Media/Help Desk Tech. Social Media/Help Desk Tech. IT 2,245.00$                              

6 Administrative Asst. III Executive Assistant Parks & Rec. 4,952.00$                              

7 Marketing/Spec. Events Leader Marketing/Spec. Events Leader Parks & Rec. 5,596.00$                              

8 Multi‐Sports Manager Multi‐Sports Coordinator Parks & Rec. 4,414.00$                              

Public Non‐Public Stormwater Utility Occupancy

Fiscal Year Safety Safety Total Fund Fund Fund Total

2011‐12 209 209 418 60 2 480

2012‐13 207 199 406 62 2 470

2013‐14 201 181 382 59 2 443

2014‐15 202 182 384 61 2 447

2015‐16 203 176 379 61 2 442

2016‐17 203 180 383 63 2 448

2017‐18 204 185 389 2 63 2 456

2018‐19 204 182 386 10 64 3 463



8 
 

Salary/Benefit Costs 

 General Fund Stormwater Fund Utility Fund Occupancy Fund Total

Salaries 19,477,866 399,849 2,748,993 118,239 22,744,947 

Social Security 1,491,557 30,340 210,298 9,045 1,741,240 

Retirement 1,464,980 30,584 213,686 9,202 1,718,452 

Health Insurance 2,394,546 61,320 392,448 15,330 2,863,644 

401(K) 718,822 13,995 95,518 4,113 832,448 

COLA/Merit  328,770 7,096 49,033 2,105 387,004 

     Total $25,876,541 $543,184 $3,709,976 $158,034 $30,287,735
 
 
Salary Adjustment/Benefits 
 
 Salary Adjustments 

 1% Cost of Living Increase (July 2018)   $256,734 
 1% Merit Adjustment (January 2019)   $130,270 
   Total Cost    $387,004 
 401(K) Contribution   

          Non-Sworn Employees (3% to 4% January 2019) and Sworn Employees (5%) 
 Non-Sworn Employees     $567,977 
 Sworn Employees      $264,472 
 Employer Increase     $  82,067 
 Retirement Rates:        FY 2017-18         FY 2018-19 

 General Employees            7.58%               7.82% 
 Law Enforcement Employees           8.25%                    8.50% 
       Employer Contribution Increase:                  $76,123 
 Health Insurance:   

 Employer Increase                   $188,530 
 
Health Insurance Rates 
 

 
 
Health Insurance:   
          Council’s Health Insurance Coverage                              $42,924 
       (7 members for 12 months) 
 
Departmental Requests 
General Fund Expenditures  
 Mayor/Council ($392,437) 

   City Attorney Fees      $120,000 
   Consultant Fees (Friends of Seymour)        75,000 
   Health Insurance Costs              42,924 
  
 City Manager ($1,166,118) 

        Salary Reserve (Cola/Merit)                  328,601 
   Communication and Marketing        15,000 
   Air Show          15,000 
   Contract Services (Landscaping/Maint. contracts)       32,450 
           



9 
 

 Human Resources ($595,637)  
   Health Maintenance Program           88,500 
   Employee Appreciation Day/Health Fair       13,650 
 Community Relations ($161,085) 

        Summer Youth Program         30,000 
      
 Paramount Theatre ($476,133) 
       Performance Series           53,000 
 Event Center ($143,890) 
   
 Inspections ($817,196) 
  Demolition         200,200 
       House Securement                        5,000 
        
 DGDC ($444,198) 
 Downtown Projects         112,000 
        
 Information Technology ($1,244,897) 
 Software License Fees         400,000 
 Telephone         200,000 
 Public Works – Admin. ($471,569) 
  Electricity          115,000 
 Garage ($2,285,658) 
   Gasoline         $500,000 
       Diesel Fuel           360,000 
   Tires and Tubes          175,000 
       Automotive Parts          351,000 
       Outside Repairs                100,000 
        
 Building & Grounds ($764,578) 
   Building Maintenance           45,000 
 Cemetery ($320,549) 
 Finance ($1,267,341) 
   Tax Listing Fees          270,000 
   Consultant Fees            50,000 
       Audit (General Fund Portion)           29,400 
 Planning ($1,367,536) 
   Clean and Cut Lots      $    35,620 
       Tree Service            60,000 
       Maintenance of Enhancement Areas         45,000 
   Transportation Planning  
   (80% NCDOT Reimb.)       400,000            
 Streets & Storms ($774,112) 
   Sidewalk/Street Repairs               50,000 
 Streets & Storms - Utilities ($475,200) 
   Street Lights          450,000 
 Street Paving (None)     
   Resurfacing      $2,500,000 
   (Street Improvement Bonds)      
 Solid Waste ($2,919,924) 
   Landfill Charges ($31.50/Ton)         335,000 
   Replacement Garbage/Recycling Containers/Dumpters        70,000 
 Engineering ($992,926) 
   Traffic Signal Electricity           15,000  
   Traffic Maintenance Materials           45,000                 
 Fire Department ($6,186,100) 
        Medical Exams            25,000 
        Fire Hose               7,500 
        Air Packs             50,000 
 Police Department ($9,608,204) 
        Uniforms      $     70,000          
        BLET Program            20,000 
        Police ShotSpotter Fees         204,750 
 Special Expense ($5,762,822) 
         Agency Support (Chart)         448,129 
         Debt Service Payments                               4,929,903 
 Parks & Recreation ($3,247,532) 

 Consultant Fees     $     50,000 



10 
 

      Operational and Maintenance Supplies          270,000 
 Golf Course ($638,629) 
         Equipment Rent (includes cart lease)   $     90,000 

  Advertising                 15,000 
  Pro-Shop Expense                50,000 

 
Council discussed replacement of air packs within the Fire Department.  Councilmember Foster 
asked why the appropriation for the air packs was cut.  Chief Farfour shared they are transitioning 
to newer models and eventually parts will not be available for the older models, but there are not 
any safety issues at this time.   
 
Stormwater Fund Expenditures 
 Stormwater Department ($1,504,000) 

 Consultant Fees            12,600                     
Stormwater Drainage Improvements    175,000 

     Tree Service         50,000 
     Landfill Charges        40,000 
  
Utility Fund Expenditures 
 Distribution and Collections Division ($3,553,453) 

  Water Meters & Boxes     $100,000 
          Fire Hydrants/Water Valve Replacement    153,904 
  Loan Payment (AMI)        722,440 
              Lease Purchase Payment      104,784 
  Water Treatment Plant ($5,463,602) 

    Chemicals        755,000 
    Neuse River Dredging             79,000 
    Flood Control Structure      600,000 
    Debt Svc Payments       600,650 
    Mach./Equip. Maintenance      493,965 
    Water Reclamation Facility ($7,145,686) 

    Chemicals      $122,000 
    Mach/Equipment Maintenance     699,595 
        Turbo Blowers                    500,000 
    Debt Svc Payments                1,770,116 
 Utility Fund (Capital) ($857,710) 

    Salary Reserve (Cola/Merit)       49,033 
    Utility Improvements (Streetscape)    238,688 
    Water Plant Expansion     500,000 
 Compost Facility ($992,637) 

    Equipment Fuel        36,000 
                Mach/Equipment Maintenance     105,000 
  
General Fund  
Vehicles/Equipment - Requested/Recommended  
 

 

DEPT. ITEM QUANT. AMOUNT TOTAL QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL

Inspections
11-1024-5412 Pick-Up Truck (Replacement) 1 25,000.00      25,000.00                0 -                     -                       

                 2001 - 137,615 Miles

Information Technology
11-1030-5088 Fiber Splicing Trailer (New) 1 25,000.00      25,000.00                0 -                       

11-1030-5423 Crew-Cab Pick-Up Truck (Replacement) 1 27,000.00      27,000.00                0 -                     -                       
2001 Malibu - 89,813 miles

Public Works - Admin.
11-1111-5423 Crew Cab Pick-Up Truck (New) 1 35,000.00      35,000.00                0 -                     -                       

Building Maintenance
11-1133-5422 Bucket Truck (Replacement) 1 120,000.00    120,000.00              1 120,000.00          120,000.00           

2000 - 75,000 Miles

11-1133-5486 Riding Mower (Replacement) 1 15,000.00      15,000.00                1 -                     -                       
18 Yrs old

Planning
11-3151-5401 Admin. Car (Replacement) 0 -               -                          0 -                     -                       

11-3151-5423 Crew Cab Pick-Up Truck (Replacement) 1 27,000.00      27,000.00                0 -                     -                       
1998 Ranger - 161,479 miles

Streets & Storms
11-4134-5453 Pothole Patcher (Replacement) 1 188,000.00    188,000.00              0 -                     -                       

2001 - 80,000 miles

11-4134-5474 Dump Truck (Replacement) 1 87,000.00      87,000.00                0 -                     -                       
2006 - 132,000 miles

Solid Waste
11-4143-5402 Garbage Truck (Rear Loader Packer) Replace. 1 180,000.00    180,000.00              0 -                     -                       

2001 GMC - 79,067 miles

                      Recommended for Loan

REQUESTED RECOMMENDED

VEHICLES



11 
 

  

 
 

 
 

Stormwater & Utility Funds  
Vehicles/Equipment - Requested/Recommended 

 
 

 
 

DEPT. ITEM QUANT. AMOUNT TOTAL QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL

11-4143-5421 Truck Tractor (Road Tractor) Replacement 1 200,000.00    200,000.00              0 -                     -                       
2001 Sterling - 44,320 miles

11-4143-5423 Crew Cab Pick-Up Truck (Replacement) 1 35,000.00      35,000.00                1 29,000.00           29,000.00             
2001 Malibu - 120,598 miles

11-4143-5474 Dump Truck (Replacement) 1 90,000.00      90,000.00                1 90,000.00           90,000.00             
1993 Ford - 94,873 miles

Engineering
11-4172-5412 Compact Pick-Up Truck (Replacement) 1 25,000.00      25,000.00                0 -                     -                       

1999 Chev, - 80,000 miles

Fire
11-5120-5401 Administrative Vehicle (Replacement) 1 19,000.00      19,000.00                0 -                     -                       

2004 Taurus - 125,000 Miles

Police
11-6121-5401 Administrative Vehicle (Replacements) 

(4) Ford Escapes Admin Vehicles 4 18,759.00      75,036.00                2 18,759.00           37,518.00             
(4) Dodge Chargers Investigations 4 23,668.00      94,672.00                2 23,668.00           47,336.00             
(1) Ford Transit Community Police Service Unit 1 28,102.00      28,102.00                1 28,102.00           28,102.00             
(1) Chevy Camaro VICE 1 35,549.00      35,549.00                0 -                     -                       
(1) Ford F-150 VICE 1 23,515.00      23,515.00                0 -                     -                       
(1) Chev. Tahoe VICE 1 31,960.00      31,960.00                1 31,960.00           31,960.00             
(1) Ford F-250 Animal Control 1 21,869.00      21,869.00                1 21,869.00           21,869.00             
(1) Chev. Tahoe Community Police Service Unit 1 42,830.00      42,830.00                0 -                     -                       
(1) Dodge Journey GPAC, CALEA, DCI 1 17,184.00      17,184.00                0 -                     -                       

11-6121-5404 Line Cars (Replacements) - Chargers 7 23,668.00      165,676.00              4 23,668.00           94,672.00             

Parks & Rec.
11-7460-5069 Turf Mower (Multi-Sports Complex) 1 58,545.00      58,545.00                0 -                     -                       

11-7460-5083 Utility Club Cart (New - Multi-Sports Complex) 2 5,000.00       10,000.00                0 -                     -                       

11-7460-5431 Riding Lawnmower 1 10,400.00      10,400.00                0 -                     -                       

11-7460-5439 Tractor 1 35,000.00      35,000.00                0 -                     -                       

11-7460-5479 Dump Truck - 2 Ton (Replacement) 1 57,900.00      57,900.00                0 -                     -                       
1999 Ford

                      Recommended for Loan

REQUESTED RECOMMENDED

VEHICLES

DEPT. ITEM QUANT. AMOUNT TOTAL QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL
11-7460-5643 Rotary Mower (Multi-Sports) 1 9,000.00       9,000.00                  0 -                     -                       

11-7460-5649 Mower Attachment 1 13,000.00      13,000.00                0 -                     -                       

Golf Course
11-7461-5083 Utility Club Cart 2 10,500.00      21,000.00                0 -                     -                       

REQUESTED RECOMMENDED

DEPT. ITEM QUANT. AMOUNT TOTAL QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL
Stormwater
15-4137-5423 Crew-Cab Pick-Up Truck (Replacement) 1 29,000.00      29,000.00                1 29,000.00           29,000.00             

15-4137-5474 Dump Truck (Replacement) 1 87,000.00      87,000.00                1 87,000.00           87,000.00             
2002 - 115,000 miles

Maintenance
61-4175-5228 Mowing Tractors (Replacements) 2 68,000.00      136,000.00              2 68,000.00           136,000.00           

1997, 1998

61-4175-5420 Tandem Dump Truck (Replacement) 1 140,000.00    140,000.00              1 140,000.00          140,000.00           
2007 Tandem

61-4175-5423 Crew-Cab Pick Up Truck (Replacement) 1 33,000.00      33,000.00                1 33,000.00           33,000.00             
2010 Ford

61-4175-5643 Rotary Mower New 1 16,000.00      16,000.00                1 16,000.00           16,000.00             

Waste Treatment
61-4177-5423 Crew Cab Pick-Up Truck (Replacement) 1 29,500.00      29,500.00                1 24,500.00           24,500.00             

2005 Chev - 175,000 Miles

Compost
61-4179-5509 Heavy Duty Wheel Loader (New) 1 153,000.00    153,000.00              1 153,000.00          153,000.00           

                      Recommended for Loan

REQUESTED RECOMMENDED

DEPT. ITEM QUANT. AMOUNT TOTAL QUANTITY AMOUNT TOTAL

Utility Fund - Capital
61-4178-5068 Streetscape Project 1 238,688.00          238,688.00           

61-4178-5909 Utility Improvements - N. William Street Widening 1 1,157,000.00 1,157,000.00            0 -                     -                       

61-4178-5909 Utility Improvements - Wayne Memorial Drive 1 250,000.00    250,000.00              0 -                     -                       
 

61-4178-5909 Utility Improvements - Royall Ave. Realignment 1 400,000.00    400,000.00              0 -                     -                       

61-4178-5912 Repaint Center & Holly Water Tank 1 1,061,000.00 1,061,000.00            0 -                     -                       

61-4178-5944 Petitioned Sanitary Sewer Improvements
(East Ash Street to 128 N. Oak Forest Rd.) 1 70,000.00      70,000.00                0 -                     -                       

(103 Courtney Rd to Bayleaf Drive) 1 80,000.00      80,000.00                0 -                     -                       

(1750 US 117 South to 1416 US 117 South) 1 90,000.00      90,000.00                0 -                     -                       

(N. Marion Drive to Maplewood Drive) 1 90,000.00      90,000.00                0 -                     -                       

61-4178-5957 Water Plant Expansion 1 500,000.00    500,000.00              1 500,000.00          500,000.00           

61-4178-5964 Petitioned Water Improvements 1 40,000.00      40,000.00                0 -                     -                       
(Branch St from Vann St. to Truman St)

61-4178- SJAFB Outfall Improvements - Sewer Bonds 1 450,000.00    Sewer Bonds 450,000.00          Sewer Bonds

61-4178- 2018 Priority Sewer Rehab Phase IV - SRF Loan 1 6,268,382.00 SRF Loan 6,268,382.00       SRF Loan

61-4178- Wastewater System Improvements - SRP Loan 1 255,702.00    SRP Loan 255,702.00          SRP Loan

61-4178- Water System Improvements - DWSRF Loan 1 616,080.00    DWSRF Loan 616,080.00          DWSRF Loan

Compost
61-4179-5164 Trommel Screen (Replacement) 1 235,000.00    235,000.00              1 235,000.00          235,000.00           

2001
                      Recommended for Loan

REQUESTED RECOMMENDED

OTHER CAPITAL



12 
 

 
Capital Requests/Recommended 
FY 2018-19 
 

FY 2017-18                   FY 2018-19                   Difference  
VEHICLES/ROLLING STOCK 
GENERAL FUND 
Requests                   $2,014,581          $1,849,238                    ($165,343) 
Recommended                               16,401                        261,457                       245,056 
                  Equip. Loan)            1,089,715                        239,000                      (850,715) 
  
STORMWATER FUND 
Requests                          $                              $    116,000                     $116,000           
Recommended                                                          116,000                       116,000 
      
 
UTILITY FUND 
Requests                          $   627,000                   $     507,500                   ($119,500)          
Recommended                              120,000                          209,500                        89,500 
    (Equip. Loan)                 463,000                          293,000                     (170,000) 
 
 
CAPITAL OUTLAY    FY 2017-18                   FY 2018-19                  Difference 
GENERAL FUND 
Requests                            $2,128,417                   $2,197,596                 $    69,179 
Recommended                                311,389                        390,633                       79,244 
                        (Equip. Loan)         225,838                          52,234                    (173,604) 
 
 
STORMWATER FUND 
Requests                                                       $  175,000               $    175,000 
Recommended                                                                      175,000                     175,000 
 
 
UTILITY FUND 
Requests                             $8,480,146                    $5,372,900              ($3,107,246) 
Recommended                                 809,100                      2,008,588                  1,199,488 
 (Equip. Loan)                                      235,000          235,000 
 
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT 

FY 17-18            FY 18-19                        
Budgeted                 Recommended  

Revenues: 
 Taxes      $71,236      $72,155 
 Investment Earnings             90                    315 
   Total    $71,326      $72,470 
 
 
Expenditures:      $71,326      $72,470 
 
*Business Incentive Program - $15,000– 21% of Budget 
 
* *Municipal Service District Rate:   23.5 cents per $100 of valuation 
 
OCCUPANCY TAX FUND  

        FY 17-18              FY 18-19                          
       Budgeted           Recommended  

Distribution of Occupancy Tax Revenues 
80% Civic Center   $   675,000               $   690,000 
20% Travel & Tourism                           165,000                     170,000 
County of Wayne (1%)       165,000                  170,000 
Investment Earnings                 600                           1,050 



13 
 

        Totals    $1,005,600            $1,031,050 
 
Fund Balance Withdrawal                      $  20,683 
 
   Totals             $1,005,600             $1,051,733 
 
 
Expenditures: 
Civic Center Programs       675,500                      690,800  
  
Travel & Tourism                               330,100                      360,933  
Operations and Marketing 
 
   Totals   $1,005,600            $1,051,733 
Current levy is 5% for local hotel and motel occupancy 
County of Wayne’s funding of the 1% occupancy tax   
 
FUND BALANCES    
Fund Balance 
As the following chart shows, there was no allocation of the recommended budget being 
financed through the City’s fund reserves.  In order to maintain an adequate fund balance, 
any increased expenditure must be accompanied by either new sources of additional 
revenue or a reduction of existing appropriations.   Failure to act along these lines could 
result in reduced service levels in the future.  The following chart describes the City’s 
fund balances:  
 

 
 
Summary  
FY 2018-19 Budget 

 
 
Next Steps 
1. What additional information/discussion do you need from staff? 
2.    Public Hearing Schedule for May 21, 2018.  Letters have been sent to Agencies 
3.    Scheduling any additional budget work sessions.   
4.    Recommend Adoption of FY 18-19 Budget at June 4 meeting. 
 
Additional discussion included: 
 

 Councilmember Williams stated a Master Plan for District 1 is needed.  Sidewalks 
are needed along George Street and William Street.   Councilmember Williams 
stated he was disappointed that there was no funding included for Summer in the 
Zone.  

Balance (Audit) Ending Balance Appropriations Beginning Balance

FY 2017‐18 FY 2017‐18 FY 2018‐19 FY 2018‐19

General Fund 7,811,298$                   7,272,422$                ‐$                          7,272,422$                     

Stormwater Fund ‐                                  

Utility Fund 6,664,289                     6,490,261                  ‐                             6,490,261                       

Downtown District 82,896                            71,573                         ‐                             71,573                             

Occupancy Tax Fund ‐                                     

    Civic Center 1,145,619                     399,928                      ‐                             399,928                           

   Travel & Tourism 73,812                            73,812                         20,683                      53,129                             

Total 15,777,914$                14,307,996$             20,683$                   14,287,313$                  

Category General Stormwater Utility DGDC

Occupancy 

Tax Total

Salary/Benefits 25,876,541$   543,184$         3,709,976$      158,034$       30,287,735$      

Operational Costs 9,055,501        539,836            8,289,045         72,470          551,699         18,508,551$      

Debt Service 4,929,905        129,980            3,267,979         342,000         8,669,864           

Vehicle/Capital Outlay 943,324           291,000            2,746,088         3,980,412           

Total 40,805,271$   1,504,000$      18,013,088$    72,470$        1,051,733$   61,446,562$      



14 
 

 Mayor Pro Tem Ham and Councilmember Stevens advocated for a City-wide 
Master/Strategic Plan.  

 Reduction in Council Benefits/Salary.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham made a motion to 
reduce Council’s salary.  Councilmember Broadaway seconded the motion.  
Council discussed and agreed to have further discussion at a future meeting. 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham and Councilmember Broadaway withdrew their motions.   

 Councilmember Foster suggested cutting meals and travel expenses.   
 Mayor Allen requested a utilization report for vehicles/equipment (mowers) to 

include vehicle year and usage.  
 The need for a mowing plan was also discussed. 
 Elmwood Cemetery Expansion 
 CDBG Funding 
 Additional Park Lighting and Needs 
 Status of Equalization Basins 
 Budget Work Session on May 22nd at 9:00 am on Facebook Live 
 Councilmember Williams shared concerns regarding a couple of meetings that 

appeared to be edited.  Mr. Stevens stated they should not have been edited and 
requested Councilmember Williams share those dates with Scott Williams.   
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:43 a.m. 
 
 
     

___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen 
       Mayor 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Corser, MMC 
       City Clerk 



1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL HELD 
FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 BUDGET WORK SESSION 

MAY 31, 2018 

BUDGET WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, called a Special 
Meeting to discuss the proposed 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Budget and a potential litigation 
matter in the Large Conference Room on the second floor of the City Hall Addition, 200 
North Center Street, Goldsboro at 1:00 p.m. on May 31, 2018 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem David Ham  
Councilmember Antonio Williams (arrived at 1:04 p.m.) 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Mark Stevens 
Councilmember Bevan Foster  (arrived at 1:02 p.m.)  
Councilmember Gene Aycock 

Call to Order.  Mayor Allen called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by 
Councilmember Aycock and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda. 

Ms. Kaye Scott, Finance Director, presented the following information on the proposed 
Budget for FY 2018-19: 

Agency Requests 

Budget Discussion Items 

Item A.2 



2 
 

Budget Suggestions 

 
 
Budget Discussion Items 
 
1. Paid Internships – Ms. Bernadette Carter-Dove shared information regarding paid 

internships.  HR staff researched local municipalities.  Ms. Carter-Dove stated she 
would recommend if Council decided to offer paid internships, focus on college 
students enrolled in a bachelor’s or master’s program at a rate between $10-15 per 
hour.   

2. School System Funding – Mr. Ron Lawrence shared information with Council 
regarding school system funding.  Previously cities were not authorized under NC GS 
160A-209 to contribute to schools; however, there is new legislation that could allow 
municipalities to contribute funding towards schools.   

3. MSD (DGDC Fund) Budget Details – Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to 
reduce line item 2113 by $5,000, reduce line item 3700 by $5,250 and reduce line 
item 4998 by $10,000 moving $20,250 to the MSD Reserve.  Councilmember 
Stevens seconded the motion.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers 
Broadaway, Stevens and Aycock voted in favor of the motion.  Councilmembers 
Williams and Foster voted against the motion.  Mayor Allen stated the motion passed 
with a 5:2 vote. 

4. Cost of Title Work – Cost by City Attorney - $5,175.00 for 2018. 
5. Sidewalks – Balance of $55,800 in payment in lieu of sidewalk account.    
6. Police – Watchtower.  Mr. Stevens shared we were asked in November of 2016 to 

look for a surplus watchtower, what we have found were not in good shape.  Staff 
will continue to look. 

 
Councilmember Stevens made a motion to keep Council Meeting meals in the budget.  
Councilmember Broadaway seconded the motion.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Ham, 
Councilmembers Broadaway, Stevens and Aycock voted in favor of the motion.  
Councilmembers Williams and Foster voted against the motion.  Mayor Allen stated the 
motion passed with a 5:2 vote. 
 
Councilmember Williams stated I just want to put on the record if a councilman leaves, I 
feel he should not be able to bring a topic back up if he leaves out of a budget meeting.   
 
Closed Session Held 
Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember Stevens and 
unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session to discuss a potential 
litigation matter.  
 
Council came out of Closed Session. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:34 p.m. 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen, Mayor 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Corser, MMC   
       City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-35 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY BRUCE KORNEGAY  
AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

FOR MORE THAN 29 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Bruce Kornegay retires on August 1, 2018 as an Equipment Operator with the 
Public Works Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 29 years of service; and 

WHEREAS, Bruce began his career on August 2, 1989 as a Laborer I with the Public Works 
Department; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 1992, Bruce was promoted to Equipment Operator with the Public Works 
Department where he has served until his retirement; and 

WHEREAS, Bruce has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has 
gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Bruce Kornegay 
their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. We express our deep appreciation and gratitude for the dedicated service rendered during
Bruce’s tenure with the City of Goldsboro.

2. We offer Bruce our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in his
future endeavors.

3. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of July, 2018.

Approved as to form only: Reviewed by: 

_______________________ _______________________ 
City Attorney City Manager 

Item B 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-36 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY WILLETTE DAVIS 
AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

FOR MORE THAN 22 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Willette Davis retires on August 1, 2018 as a Police Crime Analyst with the Goldsboro 
Police Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 22 years of service; and 

WHEREAS, Willette began her career on August 16, 1995 as a Police Crime Analyst with the 
Goldsboro Police Department where she has served until her retirement; and 

WHEREAS, Willette has proven herself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who gained the 
admiration and respect of her fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Willette Davis their deep 
appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by her to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. We express to Willette our deep appreciation and gratitude for the dedicated service rendered during
her tenure with the City of Goldsboro.

2. We offer Willette our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in her
future endeavors.

3. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be
in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of July, 2018.

Approved as to form only: Reviewed by: 

_______________________ _______________________ 
City Attorney City Manager 

Item C 



F











G











H











Item.________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

JULY 16, 2018 - COUNCIL MEETING  

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to Consider the Financing of the Central Police and 
Fire Department Expansion and Renovations to Fire Station #4 

BACKGROUND: Under Section 160A-20, the City must hold a public hearing on the 
installment financing before entering into a contract. Notice of  
the public hearing was published in the Goldsboro News-Argus on  
July 6, 2018. 

DISCUSSION: The City of Goldsboro plans to construct a state-of-art 8,000 
square foot expansion for police evidence and construct a 3,500 
square foot dormitory building at Fire Station #4.  The City is 
soliciting bids for installment financing for these projects with an 
amount not to exceed $5,300,000.   

RECOMMENDATION: No action is required after the public hearing.  At the next meeting, 
staff will have a recommendation for the bank financing along with 
the resolution authorizing the filing of the application with the 
Local Government Commission. 

Date:  ___________________ ____________________________     
Kaye Scott, Finance Director 

Date:  ___________________ ____________________________ 
Scott Stevens, City Manager 

I



Item	_________	

CITY	OF	GOLDSBORO	
AGENDA	MEMORANDUM	

July	16,	2018	COUNCIL	MEETING	

SUBJECT:	 Public	Hearing	–	Recommended	2018‐19	Annual	Action	Plan	

To	allow	the	citizens	of	the	City	of	Goldsboro	the	opportunity	
to	discuss	and	express	their	concerns	regarding	housing	and	
non‐housing	needs	that	exist	in	the	Goldsboro	community	as	
they	 relate	 to	 the	 2018‐2019	 Annual	 Action	 Plan	 for	 the	
Community	 Development	 Block	 Grant	 (CDBG)	 and	 Home	
Investment	Partnership	(HOME)	Programs.	

BACKGROUND:	 HUD	requires	that	the	City's	2018‐2019	Annual	Action	Plan	be	
submitted	 by	 August	 16,	 2018.	 	 The	 FY18	 federal	
appropriations	process	extended	through	May	of	2018	and	the	
City	 was	 notified	 of	 final	 allocations	 on	 May	 16,	 2018.		
Notifications	 of	 funding	 awards	 have	 historically	 occurred	
between	 January	 and	 March.	 	 Grantees	 receiving	 annual	
allocations	of	CDBG	and	HOME	funds	are	statutorily	required	
to	submit	grant	agreements	and	annual	action	plans	by	August	
16th,	regardless	of	delays	in	the	federal	budget.			

DISCUSSION:	 A	thirty‐(30)	day	comment	period	began	on	July	6,	2018	and	
will	end	on	August	6,	2018.	 	A	public	hearing	must	be	held	
during	this	public	comment	period.	 	Comments	received	at	
this	public	hearing	and	the	public	meeting	scheduled	for	July	
27,	 2018	 will	 be	 incorporated	 as	 part	 of	 the	 2018‐2019	
Annual	Action	Plan.		An	advertisement	was	published	in	the	
Goldsboro	News	Argus	on	July	6,	2018,	relative	to	the	holding	
of	a	public	hearing,	public	meeting,	and	thirty‐day	review.		A	
second	advertisement	will	be	published	at	least	10	days	prior	
to	the	scheduled	July	27,	2018	public	meeting.		

The	2018‐2019	Annual	Action	Plan	identifies	activities	to	be	
funded	 with	 the	 City’s	 FY18	 CDBG	 and	 HOME	 funding	
allocations.		Primarily,	for	objectives	of	the	CDBG	and	HOME	
program	to	develop	viable	urban	communities	by	providing	
decent	housing,	suitable	living	environment,	and	expanding	
economic	 opportunities,	 mainly	 for	 persons	 of	 low‐to‐
moderate	income.	

J



Fiscal	Year	2018	 funding	 allocations	 include	$339,336	 for	
CDBG	and	$228,922	for	HOME.		In	addition,	the	City	will	have	
available	approximately	$23,511	 in	prior	year	CDBG	funds	
and	$118,697	in	prior	year	HOME	funds	(prior	year	balances	
as	of	June	30,	2018).	 	Staff	through	individuals,	community	
groups,	public	forums,	and	inter‐governmental/departmental	
discussions	 identified	 recommended	 activities	 during	 the	
planning	process	for	the	2018‐2019	Annual	Action	Plan.		The	
2018‐2019	 Annual	 Action	 Plan	 is	 the	 4th	 year	 of	
implementing	the	Five‐Year	Consolidated	Plan	for	2015‐2019.	
	A	draft	of	the	2018‐2019	Annual	Action	Plan	is	included.			

	
RECOMMENDATION:	 By	motion	following	the	first	public	hearing	on	July	16,	2018,	

staff	recommends:	
	

1. Continue	 acceptance	 of	 citizen	 comments	 and	
participation	for	the	2018‐2019	Annual	Action	Plan	to	
be	incorporated	in	the	final	submission	to	HUD;	and	

2. Approve	the	adoption	of	the	City	of	Goldsboro	2018‐
2019	 Annual	 Action	 Plan,	 after	 the	 second	 public	
meeting	scheduled	for	July	27,	2018	and	at	the	end	of	
the	thirty‐(30)	day	comment	period	scheduled	to	end	
August	6,	2018;	and		

3. Authorize	the	Mayor	and	staff	to	execute	and	file	the	
Annual	 Action	 Plan,	 along	 with	 the	 required	
Certifications,	the	SF‐424,	and	Grant	Agreements	that	
are	required	to	receive	CDBG	and	HOME	funding	for	
and	on	behalf	of	the	City	of	Goldsboro,	and	to	make	
minor	changes	to	those	documents	where	necessary.		

	
	
Date:		________________________	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Community	Relations	Director	
	
	
Date:		_______________________	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

City	Manager	
	
	
	
ssc	



 CCiittyy  ooff  GGoollddssbboorroo  
22001188--22001199  AAnnnnuuaall  AAccttiioonn  PPllaann    

  
  
  

CCoommmmuunniittyy  DDeevveellooppmmeenntt  BBlloocckk  GGrraanntt  ((CCDDBBGG))  
HHoommee  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  PPaarrttnneerrsshhiipp  ((HHOOMMEE))  

 

 
 
 
 

 Mayor 
Chuck Allen 

 

 City Manager 
Scott A. Stevens 

 

District 1 
Antonio Williams 

District 2 
Bill Broadaway 

District 3 
Mark Stevens 

District 4 
Bevan Foster 

District 5 
David Ham 

District 6 
Gene Aycock 

Community Relations Director 
Shycole Simpson-Carter 



City of Goldsboro - 2018-2019 Annual Action Plan (Draft)  Page 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (91.220 (b)) 
 
The City of Goldsboro is an Entitlement City according to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban  
Development (HUD) criteria.  Accordingly, the City receives annual allocations of funds for housing and 
community development projects under the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home Investment 
Partnership (HOME) Programs.  As an Entitlement City and as a prerequisite to receive funding, the City of 
Goldsboro is required to conduct a comprehensive assessment of its housing and community needs and to present a 
Five-Year Consolidated Plan in a detailed format prescribed by HUD.  A yearly Action Plan is required for each of 
the five years of the City’s Consolidated Plan.  This is the fourth year of the City’s Five-year Consolidated Plan 
(2015-2020), which covers July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.   
 
The Action Plan identifies key priorities and goals that would significantly improve low-to-moderate-income 
citizens of Goldsboro quality of life through vital housing and community development programs.  The Action Plan 
is derived from the methodologies established in the Five-Year Consolidated Plan and it is formulated in a 
collaborative manner with the assistance of management staff within the Community Relations Department.  In 
addition, the Action Plan is integrated with contributions from individuals, community groups, public forums, and 
inter-governmental/departmental discussions during the planning process for the 2018-2019 Action Plan.  Staff 
regularly attended community group and association meetings in the City limits throughout the year, which created 
partnerships, maintain meaningful and productive relationships in the community, and enhanced the Department’s 
ability to develop responsive and relevant programs.  The City of Goldsboro completed many of its strategic 
community goals in year 2017-2018.  The top priorities and goals determined in the 2018-2019 Action Plan include 
the following: 
 

 Rehabilitation of owner-occupied single family units 
 Acquisition, demolition, and clearance of dilapidated housing units 
 Improving and/or preserving communities in danger of slum and blight conditions 
 Construction of affordable housing through CHDO Activities 
 Providing homebuyer assistance for first-time homebuyers 
 Support projects or programs by non-profit organizations or for-profit corporations that benefit low-to-

moderate-income (LMI) residents of the City 
 Identification of infrastructure improvements (i.e., sewer, sidewalk, water line etc.) 
 Eliminating hazardous materials in dwellings assisted with federal funds 

 
BRIEF OVERVIEW OF THE CDBG & HOME PROGRAMS 

 
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program is authorized under Title 1 of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended.  The primary objective of the CDBG Program is the 
development of viable urban communities, by providing decent housing, suitable living environment, and expanding 
economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate income.  CDBG funds can only be used in 
compliance with the national objectives and eligibility requirements of the program; all of Goldsboro’s CDBG-
funded activities in the 2018-2019 Action Plan meet at least one of these national objectives:   
 

 Benefit to low and moderate income families, 
 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight, 
 Addressing urgent needs 

The HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) Program was created by the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 
to create local partnerships for providing decent affordable housing to lower-to-moderate income households.  It 
was intended that local participating jurisdictions work with nonprofit organizations and private investment 
organizations within the community to achieve this goal.  Cities may use their HOME funds to help renters, new 
homebuyers, or existing homeowners.  The HOME Program is designed to provide affordable housing to low-to-
moderate income families and individuals.  Therefore, the program has rules about targeting program resources and 
establishing applicant eligibility. 
 



City of Goldsboro - 2018-2019 Annual Action Plan (Draft)  Page 2 

RESOURCES (91.220 (c) (1) and (c) (2)) 
 
The Annual Action Plan describes the City’s plan for the expenditure of federal dollars for the coming fiscal year to 
carry out the goals and objectives prioritized in the City’s Annual Action Plan for 2018-2019.  It outlines activities 
of two (2) major formula grants: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home Investment Partnerships 
Program (HOME).  In FY 2018-2019, the City anticipates receiving $339,336 in CDBG funds and $228,922  in 
HOME funds.  Additionally, the City will have available approximately $23,511 in prior year CDBG funds and 
$118,697 in prior year HOME funds (prior year balances as of June 30, 2018).  The City will be requesting a 
100% HOME Match Reduction for FY18-19.  Therefore, the City may not be required to provide local 
matching funds for FY18-19 HOME allocation.  At least 70% of all CDBG funds spent will meet the LMI 
benefit test within a three-year period. 
 
ANNUAL OBJECTIVES/ACTIVITIES (91.220 (c) (3))  

 

 

ACTIVITY CD BG HOME
OTHER 

FU ND S

TOTAL 

RESOU RCES

CD BG HOME CD BG HOME

Housing Rehabilitation 24,128 121,692 3,120 118,697 267,637

Hazardous Material                  

(Testing and Monitoring)
0

Homebuyer Assistance 50,000 4,048 54,048

Public Facilities & 

Improvements
175,000 175,000

Public Services 15,000 15,000

Demolition and Clearance 0

Transitional Housing 0

CHDO Activity 34,338 34,338

Economic Development 57,341 23,511 80,852

Program Administration 67,867 22,892 90,759

Local Home Match 0

Urgent Repair Program 100,000 100,000

ESFRLP-Disaster Recovery 150,000 150,000

Total Allocations $339,336 $228,922 $250,000 $3,120 $4,048 $23,511 $118,697 $967,634

PROGRAM       

INCOME

PRIOR YEAR FU ND S 

(As of 6-30-18)

The City will be requesting a 100% HOME Match Reduction for FY18-19.  



City of Goldsboro - 2018-2019 Annual Action Plan (Draft)  Page 3 

1. Housing Rehabilitation Activity funds will be utilized to rehab the City’s aging housing stock is geared 
towards ensuring the continued livability and viability of Goldsboro’s limited affordable housing units. 

2. Homebuyer Assistance Activity funds will be utilized to provide direct-subsidy assistance to low -mod 
income individuals and families to become homebuyers and increase the supply of affordable housing.  

3. Public Facilities & Improvement Activity funds will be utilized for improvement and maintain of WA 
Foster Recreational Center and the Leslie Center located in low-mod census tract areas of the City. 

4. Public Services Activity funds will be utilized to assist with transportation services for low-mod individuals 
and families only.  In light of this information that has been compared to the recent studies and plans 
conducted since 2015, a freeze of funding to local community based organizations and/or non-profits has 
been instituted.  This is to allow the City the opportunity to internally and/or through working with a 
consultant to inventory and assess the effectiveness of practices and service delivery models of past and 
current CDBG funds. 

5. CHDO Activity funds will be utilized to set aside a minimum of (15%) of its HOME funds for CHDO 
activities that focus on housing development activities in which qualified CHDOs are the owners, 
developers and/or sponsors of the housing. 

6. Economic Development Activity funds will be utilized to assist recipients to build capacity and guide 
economic prosperity and resiliency in Goldsboro.  This activity will help to support investments designed to 
guide the eventual creation and retention of quality jobs, particularly for the unemployed and 
underemployed Goldsboro citizens that are economically distressed.  

7. Program Administration Activity funds will be utilized for administrative costs that are necessary for 
program planning and management of the CDBG and HOME programs/activities.   

8. Urgent Repair Program funds will be utilized to assist very-low and low-income households with special 
needs in addressing housing conditions which pose imminent threats to their life and/or safety or to provide 
accessibility modification and other repairs necessary to prevent displacement. 

9. Essential Single-Family Rehab Loan Pool Disaster Recovery funds will be utilized to assist with the 
rehabilitation of owner-occupied homes damaged by Hurricane Matthew in the City and County. 

 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (91.200 and 91.220 (b)) 

 
The City of Goldsboro Community Relations Department wishes to meet with interested citizens, agencies, groups 
and organizations who wish to discuss and express their concerns and ideas with regards to housing and non-
housing needs of Goldsboro’s low and moderate-income persons and families.  The City has scheduled two 
meetings to allow citizens the opportunity to comment on the 2018-2019 Action Plan.  First, will be a public hearing 
to be held on Monday, July 16, 2018 at 7:00 pm during the regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council in 
Council Chamber of City Hall, 214 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC.  Followed by a public meeting to be held on 
Friday, July 27, 2018 at 6:00 pm at Herman Park located at 901 East Ash Street in Meeting Room #2.  If you 
require a language interpreter, please contact the City Manager’s Office, City Hall Annex, at least four (4) business 
days prior to the meeting by calling (919) 580-4330.  Anyone unable to attend these meetings and desire 
information or would like to provide your input towards the 2018 -2019 Annual Action Plan may visit the 
Community Relations Department, 214 North Center Street, Goldsboro, NC, 27530, email 
ssimpson@goldsboronc.gov , or contact the Department at (919) 580-4359. 



Community Relations Department 
214 North Center Street 

Goldsboro, NC 27530 
(919) 580-4318 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Mayor Chuck Allen and the Goldsboro City Council 

FROM: Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Relations Director 

DATE: July 16, 2018 

RE: 2018-2019 (FY18-19) Annual Action Plan - Comprehensive Plan Impacts 
 
The City’s FY18-19 Annual Action Plan has been developed to achieve solid success in two of nine priorities: 
Westend Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area (NRSA) and Economic Development during this fourth 
year of the City’s Five-year Consolidated Plan (2015-2020), which covers July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.  
Improvements in those areas will lead to vitality, economic opportunities, and better quality of life for low-to-
moderated residents of Goldsboro. 
 
Housing Rehabilitations Activity - Westend Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area (NRSA) 

Within FY18-19 Annual Action Plan, $267,637 of combine CDGB & HOME funds have been allocated 
to the Housing Rehabilitation activity, primarily for Westend Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area 
(NRSA).  The target boundary is the “North End” of strategy area, located in Census Tract 18, 
predominately-residential neighborhoods and includes some of the highest populations of low/moderate 
income and minority residents.  This target boundary is in despite need of more intensive comprehensive 
focus that will start a “pivotal point” project.   
 
With the City’s recent and successful submission to designate Census Tract 18 along with Census Tract 
14, 15, and 19 as NC Opportunity Zones there is holistic approach to drive the market place where 
private investment can be attractive for incentives and levels of subsidy because of public investment.  
Opportunity Zones are a new community development program established by Congress as a part of the 
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, they are designed to encourage long-term private investments in low-
income communities.  This program provides a federal tax incentive for taxpayers who reinvest 
unrealized capital gains into "Opportunity Funds," which are specialized vehicles dedicated to investing 
in low-income areas called "Opportunity Zones."   
 
As an additional revitalization tool, funds within the Housing Rehabilitation activity will be utilized 
through an “Order to Repair” program.  The program will allow eligible housing units within North End 
boundary of the Westend NRSA to receive priority to fix exterior code compliance orders to repair or 
other health and safety issues.  Most repairs will be exterior or interior repairs of plumbing, mechanical, 
electrical, roof replacements, or accessibility issues such as handicap ramps or door modifications. 
 
Some recommendations for the program:  open to owner and renters as a one-time funding opportunity 
per housing unit.  Funds cannot be used for an item that is covered by warranty or a claim on a 
homeowner or renter's insurance policy.  This assistance would be secured by a no interest-deferred 
loan/deed against the property with a pro rate reduction amount applied during the affordability period of 
the loan.  Payment of loan would be due upon sale of the property when sufficient net proceeds are 
realized.  However, no payment would be due in the event of death of the deed holder(s) unless sufficient 
net proceeds are triggered through sale of housing unit. 

 



 

 

Economic Development Activity – Goldsboro Small Business Investment Grant Program 

Within FY18-19 Annual Action Plan, $80,852 of CDGB funds have been allocated to the Economic 
Development activity to assist small businesses and start-ups, helping local entrepreneurs and creating 
good jobs in the City of Goldsboro.  The intent of the program is to support local small businesses to 
ensure the long-term growth of the local economy within Goldsboro.  While providing another means to 
help a business get off the ground, build a customer base, and grow job opportunities.   
 
In accordance with CDBG Program Regulations, funds for the purpose of providing economic services 
through the use of an Microenterprise Development Grant can be utilized for special economic 
development activities in addition to other activities authorized in subpart § 570.203 that may be carried 
out as part of an economic development project to the appropriate level of public. 
 
Some recommendations for the program, but not limited to:   

 Applicant’s business must be located in the city limits of Goldsboro in areas zoned appropriately 
for their use.  

 Applicants must be business entities whose gross revenues do not exceed $100,000 per year. 

 Have more than one (1) but less than twenty-five (25) full-time employees. 

 At least 51% of the number of employees must be low-to-moderate income. 

 Applicants and their businesses must not have any past due taxes, fees, or fines to the City of 
Goldsboro. 

 The program will provide two types of grants: 

o Small Grants:  Up to $2,500.00  

o Large Grants:  From $2,500.01 - $10,000.00 

 Eligible uses of grant proceeds, but not limited to:  

o Startup funding. 

o Working capital or operational funds to be used for a specific purpose. 

o Purchase of equipment, or machinery. 

o Expansion of business services or products. 

o Work force expansion. 

It should be noted that $25,000 of the $80,852 allocated to Economic Development activity has been 
committed to the City’s Summer Youth Employment Initiative (SYEI) program for FY18.  The SYEI 
program is a strategy that the City of Goldsboro has implement to grow the vitality of Goldsboro and 
expand career opportunity for youth.  
 

This FY18-19 Annual Action Plan is dedicated to making Goldsboro the best place for everyone to live, work, 
learn and play.  It represents the City’s effort toward the common cause of making Goldsboro a place where all 
low-to-moderated individuals and families cannot only live…but thrive.  If you have questions and/or require 
additional information pertaining to this matter, please advise. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

f{çvÉÄx f|ÅÑáÉÇ@VtÜàxÜ 
Shycole Simpson-Carter,  
Community Relations Director 
 
cc:  Scott A. Stevens, City Manager 

Melissa Corser, City Clerk	



K











L









M











N

















O









P







EE AASSHH SSTTEE AASSHH SSTT
EE AASSHH SSTT

N 
WI

LL
IA

M 
ST

N 
WI

LL
IA

M 
ST

AYCOCK ST

AYCOCK ST

S SLOCUMB ST
S SLOCUMB ST

EE EELLMM SSTTCRAWFORD ST
CRAWFORD ST

E WALNUT STE WALNUT ST

W OAK STW OAK ST

S W
ILL

IAM
 ST

S W
ILL

IAM
 ST

N 
JA

ME
S S

T
N 

JA
ME

S S
T

EE SSPPRRUUCCEE SSTT

S C
EN

TE
R 

ST
S C

EN
TE

R 
ST

S HERMAN ST
S HERMAN ST

COBB ST
COBB ST

MMIIMMOOSSAA SSTT

W VINE STW VINE ST

BEECH STBEECH ST

SE
AB

OA
RD

 ST
SE

AB
OA

RD
 ST

EVANS ST
EVANS ST

RREEAAMM SSTT

N 
WI

LL
IAM

 ST
N 

WI
LL

IAM
 ST

N 
CE

NT
ER

 ST
N 

CE
NT

ER
 ST

W HOLLY STW HOLLY ST

BEALE ST
BEALE ST

OLIVIA LN
OLIVIA LN

NN SSPPEENNCCEE AAVVEE

E CHESTNUT STE CHESTNUT ST

GGRR
EEEE

NNLL
EEAA

FFSS
TT

PR
IN

CE
 AV

E
PR

IN
CE

 AV
E

SWAN STSWAN ST

NORTH DR
NORTH DR

HIGGINS ST
HIGGINS ST

N N
J JE E

F FF F
E ER R

S SO O
N N

A AV V
E E

E PINE STE PINE ST

ATLANTIC AVEATLANTIC AVE

N H
ILL

CR
ES

T D
R

N H
ILL

CR
ES

T D
R

ST
AL

LIN
GS

 ST

ST
AL

LIN
GS

 ST

ROYALL AVEROYALL AVE

RU
DO

LP
H 

ST
RU

DO
LP

H 
ST

SSTT
OONN

EEYY
CCRR

EEEE
KK PP

KKWW
YY

LLIINNCCOOLLNN
DDRR

ISLER ST
ISLER ST

N A
UD

UB
ON

 AV
E

N A
UD

UB
ON

 AV
E

PPIINNEE NNEEEEDDLLEESS RRDD

BR
YA

NT
 ST

BR
YA

NT
 ST

S R
AN

DO
LP

H 
ST

S R
AN

DO
LP

H 
ST

PIT
TM

AN
 ST

PIT
TM

AN
 ST

N 
HE

RM
AN

 ST
N 

HE
RM

AN
 ST

BRAZIL ST
BRAZIL ST

WW AA TT EE RR SS SS TT

S J
OH

N 
ST

S J
OH

N 
ST

NN
A ANN

D DR R
E EWW

S S
A AV V

E E
S A

ND
RE

WS
 AV

E
S A

ND
RE

WS
 AV

E

CH
AR

LE
S S

T
CH

AR
LE

S S
T

BRIGHT ST
BRIGHT ST

E PINE STE PINE ST

CORNEY ST
CORNEY ST

DEVEREAUX ST
DEVEREAUX ST

NILE STNILE ST

EEVVEERRGGRREEEENN AAVVEE

POPLAR ST
POPLAR ST

BASIL STBASIL ST

BIGGS ST
BIGGS ST

THIRD STTHIRD ST

E MULBERRY STE MULBERRY ST

LIO
NE

L S
T

LIO
NE

L S
T

PALM STPALM STPPAARRKK BB AAVVEE

S C
LA

IBO
RN

E S
T

S C
LA

IBO
RN

E S
T

N N
P PI I

N NE E
V VI I

E EW W
A AV V

E E

RIWAY STRIWAY ST

SS
P PI I

N NE E
V VI I

E EW W
A AV V

E E

SLAUGHTER ST
SLAUGHTER ST

EDGERTON STEDGERTON ST

LLOOWWRRYY SSTT

N 
LE

SL
IE 

ST
N 

LE
SL

IE 
ST

JJUUNNIIPPEERR SSTT

HAWTHORNE ST
HAWTHORNE ST

SS
O OL L

E EA A
N ND D

E ER R
A AV V

E E

CREECH ST
CREECH ST

TT YY NNDD AALLLL LLNN

E HOLLY STE HOLLY ST

FOURTH ST

FOURTH ST

EEAASSTTEENNDD
CC II RR

ARGO ST
ARGO ST

S 
KO

RN
EG

AY
 ST

S 
KO

RN
EG

AY
 ST

MAPLE STMAPLE ST

N 
SL

OC
UM

B S
T

N 
SL

OC
UM

B S
T

CATALPA STCATALPA ST

E HOLLY STE HOLLY ST

S LESLIE ST
S LESLIE ST

S A
UD

UB
ON

 AV
E

S A
UD

UB
ON

 AV
E

SECOND STSECOND ST

S T
AY

LO
R 

ST
S T

AY
LO

R 
ST

N N
M MA A

D DI I
S SO O

N N
A AV V

E E

CASHWELL DR

CASHWELL DR

LIN
WO

OD
 AV

E
LIN

WO
OD

 AV
E

EE WWAALLNNUUTT SSTT

E PINE STE PINE ST

LAUREL STLAUREL ST

S 
BE

ST
 ST

S 
BE

ST
 ST

S S
J JE E

F FF F
E ER R

S SO O
N N

A AV V
E E

PPAARRKK AA AAVVEE

LEMON STLEMON ST

WWRRIIGG
HHTT

BBRR
OOTT

HHEE
RRSS

AAVV
EEHHIINNSSOONN SSTT

N 
CL

AIB
OR

NE
 ST

N 
CL

AIB
OR

NE
 ST

N T
AY

LO
R 

ST
N T

AY
LO

R 
ST

CLINGMAN ST
CLINGMAN ST

N 
BE

ST
 ST

N 
BE

ST
 ST

IVY STIVY ST

WWAA
YYNN

EE
MMEE

MMOO
RRIIAA

LL DDRR

PARK AVEPARK AVE

N 
RA

ND
OL

PH
 ST

N 
RA

ND
OL

PH
 ST

DENMARK ST
DENMARK ST

DA
ISY

 ST
DA

ISY
 ST

DOGWOOD STDOGWOOD ST

N 
KO

RN
EG

AY
 ST

N 
KO

RN
EG

AY
 ST

HH OO LL LL OO WW EE LLLL
AAVVEE

EAST ST
EAST ST

N 
JA

CK
SO

N 
ST

N 
JA

CK
SO

N 
ST

FIRST STFIRST ST

RRII
DDGG

EEWW
OOOO

DD
DDRR

ROSE STROSE ST

PEACHTREE STPEACHTREE ST

SSMM
AADD

IISSOO
NN

AAVV
EE

E OAK STE OAK ST

PP II NN EE

CC IIRR

E VINE STE VINE ST

SIMMONS STSIMMONS ST

NN
O OL L

E EA A
N ND D

E ER R
A AV V

E E

LE
E S

T
LE

E S
T

N 
CE

NT
ER

 ST
N 

CE
NT

ER
 ST

N 
JO

HN
 ST

N 
JO

HN
 ST

NN II NNTT HH SSTT

ALVIN STALVIN ST

POU STPOU ST

PPEEAACCHHTTRREEEE SSTT

S D
UR

AN
T S

T
S D

UR
AN

T S
T

SS
SSPP

EENN
CCEE

AAVV
EE

GULLEY ST
GULLEY ST

HUGH ST
HUGH ST

GL
EN

WO
OD

 TR
L

GL
EN

WO
OD

 TR
L

PA
TR

IC
K S

T
PA

TR
IC

K S
T

OOVV
EERR

BBRR
OOOO

KK
RRDD

CCAARR VVEE RR
DD RR

ATLANTIC AVEATLANTIC AVE

EELLMM PPLL

DAIL ST
DAIL ST

KKEEEESSLLEERR LLNN

BA
IN

 ST
BA

IN
 ST

HILLDALE LN

HILLDALE LN

LE
E D

R
LE

E D
R

FFRR
AANN

KKL L
I INN

SSTT

F FA A
I IR R

V VI IEE
WWCCIIRR

SSEERRVVIICCEE RRDD

PINE RIDGE LN

PINE RIDGE LN

SS
HHII

LLLL
CCRR

EESS
TT

DDRR

PHASE IV
SEWER COLLECTION

REHABILITATION AREA



Item No. _________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

JULY 16, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment - Outstanding Purchase Order Adjusting  
Entries 

BACKGROUND: It is a practice of the City of Goldsboro when incurring expenses to 
encumber money through the use of a purchase order.  Purchase 
orders remain outstanding until the item or service being procured 
is received by the affected department.  At that time, the purchase 
order is closed out through the issuance of a payment check.    

DISCUSSION: Accounting standards for municipal governments necessitate that 
certain book entries be undertaken at the conclusion of a fiscal 
year.  These entries, in effect, close outstanding purchase orders 
from the previous fiscal year, and reappropriate funds for the same 
purpose for the new fiscal year.  Failure to accurately reflect the 
receipt of materials, supplies and services during the same year in 
which monies are appropriated distorts the City’s financial 
statements.  Generally accepted accounting principles mandate that 
appropriations and expenditures correspond to the same fiscal 
year. 

The City of Goldsboro has its financial records and subsidiary 
systems on an on-line computer basis; therefore, it is necessary to 
make adjusting entries concerning outstanding purchase orders as 
close to the beginning of a new fiscal year as possible.  As in 
previous instances, these transactions do not alter the City’s 
unappropriated, unrestricted fund balances.  These entries basically 
appropriate sufficient funds to correspond with the budget year in 
which purchase order payments will be made by the City. 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, adopt the attached Ordinance amending the Budget 
Ordinance for the 2018-19 Fiscal Year by reappropriating monies 
associated with outstanding 2017-18 purchase orders. 

Date: ___________________________ ______________________________________ 
Kaye Scott, Finance Director 

Date: ___________________________ ______________________________________ 
Scott Stevens, City Manager 

Q



 

 1

               
ORDINANCE NO. 2018 - 

 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE    
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-19 FISCAL YEAR 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro encumbers expenses arising during a fiscal year by utilizing 
the purchase order concept; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due to the nature of certain projects and expenditures, purchase orders are 
frequently not closed out within the fiscal year in which they are written; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the National Council of Governmental Accounting has ruled that purchase orders 
written during one fiscal year and completed during a different fiscal year tend to distort a municipality's 
budget and financial statements, due to the fact that payments were not made during the same time 
frame in which the expenses were recorded; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to resolve this development, cities have found it necessary each fiscal year 
to reappropriate all outstanding purchase orders from the previous fiscal year. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that: 
 
1.  The Budget Ordinance for the 2018-19 Fiscal Year is and hereby, amended by: 
 

A. Decreasing the unassigned Fund Balance of the General Fund by $1,173,825.86. 
 

B. Increasing the following revenue line items: 
1) Loan Proceeds                 186,383.95 
2) Drug Forfeiture – State         9,868.68 
3) Drug Forfeiture – Federal     176,291.86 
4) IT Loan Proceeds                 439,676.88 
5) Stream Debris Grant Reimb.      61,597.20             
6) Governor’s Crime  Grant Reimbursement               75,051.07   
7) PARTF Reimbursement       11,550.30 

    Total                        $  960,419.94 
 
 C.  Increasing the appropriated expense of the following General Fund Operating  
       Units by the corresponding amounts: 

1) Mayor & Council     $    3,346.99 
2) City Manager’s Office      215,906.30 
3) Human Resources              516.67 
4) Paramount Theater        32,200.00 
5) Inspections                    14,000.00 
6) Downtown Development        13,250.00 
7) Information Technology                 466,919.83 
8) Public Works – Adm.                     2,178.00 
9) Garage          22,671.98 
10) Building and Grounds          7,200.57 
11) Cemetery            9,446.00 
12) Finance Department        45,500.00 
13) Planning Department        37,686.70 
14) Streets Maintenance \     323,516.13 
15) Streets Utilities           4,000.00 
16) Solid Waste Division          7,269.50 
17) Engineering           2,185.00 
18) Fire Department                    34,884.83 
19) Police Department         490,454.96 
20) Special Expense Fees                   10,000.00  
21) Parks & Recreation Department     371,121.51 
22) Golf Course         19,990.83 



 

 2

Total                        $2,134,245.80 
 

D. Decreasing the unassigned Fund Balance of the Stormwater Fund by  
      $10,861.23. 

 
E.  Increasing the appropriated expense of the following Stormwater Fund     
      Operating Units by the corresponding amounts: 
 

1) Stormwater Maintenance     $ 10,861.23 
   

F. Decreasing the unassigned Fund Balance of the Community Development Fund by  
      $28,768.93. 

 
G.  Increasing the appropriated expense of the following Community Development Fund     
      Operating Units by the corresponding amounts: 
 

2) CDBG FY 17-18      $ 28,768.93 
 

H. Decreasing the unassigned Fund Balance of the Utility Fund by $1,708,062.82. 
 

I. Increasing the following revenue line items: 
1) AMI Loan Proceeds            $2,512,321.17 

 
J.  Increasing the appropriated expense of the following Utility Fund Operating Units  
     by the corresponding amounts: 

 
1) Distribution & Collection            $    42,529.39               
2) Water Treatment Plant     560,468.93                         
3) Waste Reclamation Facility     291,778.86 
4)       Capital Expense              3,188,841.08 
5) Compost Facility      136,765.73 

  Total                         $4,220,383.99 
 

K. Decreasing the unassigned Fund Balance of the Downtown District Fund by $15,366.00 
 

L. Increasing the appropriated expense of the following Downtown District Fund   
by the corresponding amounts: 
 

1) Downtown District        $15,366.00 
 

 
M. Decreasing the unassigned Fund Balance of the Occupancy Tax Fund by $128,500.61. 

 
N. Increasing the appropriated expense of the following Occupancy Tax Fund (Civic Center) 

line items: 
 

1) Occupancy Tax/Civic Center        $127,460.61 
2) Occupancy Tax/Travel & Tourism            1,040.00  

 
 
 
2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after July 1, 2018. 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form Only:   Reviewed by: 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
City Attorney     City Manager 
  
 



Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO  
AGENDA MEMORANDUM  

JULY 16, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT:         Goldsboro Tourism Council Appointment  

BACKGROUND: Mr. Ross Halverson was appointed to the Tourism Council 
as a hotelier on April 2, 2018 with his term to expire on 
December 31, 2019. Mr. Halverson has resigned effective 
June 8, 2018.  

DISCUSSION: Ms. Elba Gutierrez has submitted an application to serve on 
the Goldsboro Tourism Council. The Goldsboro Tourism 
Council (GTC) and the Wayne County Tourism 
Development Authority (WCTDA) have recommended Ms. 
Gutierrez to fill the unexpired hotelier term left by Mr. 
Halverson’s resignation. One additional hotelier application 
for the Tourism Council has been submitted although the 
GTC and TDA boards do not recommend this applicant due 
to a current member of the board representing the same 
hotel.   

RECOMMENDATION:         By motion, Council adopt the attached Resolutions:  

1. Appointing Ms. Elba Gutierrez to the Goldsboro
Tourism Council.

2. Commending Mr.  Ross Halverson who has served on
the Goldsboro Tourism Council.

Date:  ________________ ____________________________ 
City Manager  

R



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 
 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO AN ADVISORY                                  
BOARDS AND COMMISSION 

 
 WHEREAS, continued involvement of citizens is vital to the performance of City 
government; and 
 
 WHEREAS, one vacancy exists on the Goldsboro Tourism Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the following distinguished citizen has expressed a desire to serve 
upon the Goldsboro Tourism Council; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 
 
 1.  The following individuals be and are hereby appointed to the Goldsboro 
Tourism Council.  The term shall expire on the date indicated: 
  

GOLDSBORO TOURISM COUNCIL 
 
 Filling an Unexpired Term: 
 Ms. Elba Gutierrez   Term Expires December 31, 2019 
     
 2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of 
July, 2018. 
 
 
Approved as to Form Only:                               Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
____________________________             ______________________________ 
City Attorney                                                    City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -  
 

RESOLUTION COMMENDING AN INDIVIDUAL WHO HAS SERVED  
ON THE GOLDSBORO TOURISM COUNCIL OF  

THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR ON BEHALF OF 
THE CITY COUNCIL TO PRESENT THE INDIVIDUAL WITH  

A CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION 
 
 WHEREAS, citizen participation is vital to responsible government; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the following individual has served the local citizenry by his service 
upon the advisory Boards and Commissions of the City of Goldsboro; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to commend this civic-minded 
citizen for his voluntary contributions to the City of Goldsboro.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of 
the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that:  
 

1. The following individual is recognized for his service on the Goldsboro 
Tourism Council and is commended for his contributions to the operation of 
Goldsboro’s municipal government:  

 
  Goldsboro Tourism Council 
  Ross Halverson    
    

2. The Mayor of the City of Goldsboro is hereby directed to present this 
individual a Certificate of Appreciation for his civic contributions.  

  
3. This certificate is to be presented at the next regularly scheduled meeting of 

the Goldsboro Tourism Council or as close to that meeting date as possible.  
 

4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of 
July, 2018.   

 
 
Approved as to Form Only:     Reviewed by:  

 
 
 

_______________________    __________________ 
City Attorney       City Manager  
 



Departmental Monthly Reports 
June 2018 

1. Human Resources
2. Community Relations
3. Paramount Theater-GEC
4. Inspections
5. Downtown Development
6. Information Technology
7. Public Works-Maintenance
8. Public Works-Utilities
9. Finance

10. Planning
11. Engineering
12. Fire
13. Police
14. Parks and Recreation
15. Travel and Tourism

Item S 



Human Resources Management Department 
MONTHLY REPORT – JUNE 2018 
Prepared by:  ctÅxÄt VA _xt~x 

 
 
The Human Resources Department posted 21 job vacancies and processed 231 applications in June. 158 notices were sent to job applicants 
(145 to candidates not selected for an interview and 13 who were interviewed but not hired). 49 new hires came on board this month - Five full-
time: Brooke Chase - Police Officer; Justin Edgerton - Firefighter; Davie Heath – Firefighter; Donald Johnson - Police Officer, and 
Robert Kearney – Firefighter and 44 seasonal employees, including 24 summer youth workers. There were five reductions in force: two 
retirements: Virgil Rouse – Operator III (Water Reclamation) and Alton Lewis – Firefighter; two resignations: Dakota Toms – Police Officer 
(FT) and John Morton – Clubhouse Assistant (Golf Course, PT) and one termination: Christopher Chadwick – Building Attendant 
(Paramount, PT). Total employment for June: 626 (451 full time and 175 part-time). Ten employees attended NeoGov Training at the Public 
Works Complex on June 13. This was a review of creating evaluations and introducing changes to the system since the last appraisal period in 
2017. HR staff provided assistance to the Fire Department for the Fire Engineer assessment process. Final interviews will be held in June. Seven 
employees attended new hire orientation on June 6. HR staff presented information on medical privacy and Family and Medical Leave Act policy 
and procedures at the large staff meeting on June 26.   
 
The Wellness Committee met to discuss the health fair in the Fall. Discussion centered around offering discounts to employees at the golf course 
and providing other wellness incentives. The State Health Plan is gearing up for this year’s open enrollment.  The HBR training schedule is now 
on the SHP website.  The State Health Plan enrollment system has a new name – eBenefits.  The new name, eBenefits, encourages members 
to think about eBenefits as the online gateway to all their benefit needs, not just enrollment.  When employees click on eBenefits, they will be 
taken to the eBenefits page (formerly eEnroll), where they will be able to select the appropriate portal to log in. 
 
The safety coordinator conducted safety training for the new hires on June 6, responded to a fire at the Compost facility on June 8, and worked 
on a site-specific emergency action and fire prevention plan, per NC Department of Labor recommendations. He coordinated a webinar on 
Lockout/Tagout for Parks and Recreation and Public Works employees on June 7 and forwarded sample programs and job hazard assessments 
for completion. These were required as part of the consultative visit in May. Follow-up was done throughout the month to determine progress 
and abatement of the hazards the consultative officers observed during their visit. The safety coordinator attended the Eastern Carolina Safety 
and Health Conference June 13-15 in New Bern. The sessions were very informative and a lot of material was shared that may benefit our safety 
program throughout the City. Policy reviews included safety concerns for footwear, a workplace violence policy, and revising the Hazard 
Communication Policy. Excavation and Trenching training was coordinated for Public Works employees on June 20. There were six vehicle 
accidents and two personal injuries this month. Fire Extinguisher training will be held in July. 
 
This month’s health beat trainings were TB Testing and Sharps Box Training (Police Department) and Respirator Fit Testing (Public 
Utilities). Total attendance for both sessions was 174 employees. Two CPR training classes were held: June 5 and June 19. Ten employees 
attended training and will receive their certification cards. There were 82 clinic visits this month.  
 

 

 

2018   Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Avg. 

Applications    264      247  266 204 274  231       248 
New Hires*        9      2     3     2         2       5           4 
Separations*        3          3              3     4     7      3            4 
Vehicle Accidents            3          0           1     3     2      6           3  
Workers Compensation      2     0       3     1     1      2           2 

2017   Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Avg. 

Applications     391       182  269 321   241  316 384 237  206 203 135  104   241 
New Hires*       12           6          1              7              2           3          3            10             3          3              1               6            5 
Separations*       3            0          2              2              3           5          2             2              3          3              2               3            2 
Vehicle Accidents            2            0   3     2        5     4   2   0      1          0              1              3            2 
Workers Compensation      1            0          1              0              1            0          0             0              1          1              2               2           1 
 

*Monthly stats for new hires, resignations, retirements, and terminations include full-time personnel only.                

Random Drug Screens Post-Accident Drug Screens

Non-DOT: 7 tested; 2 breathalyzers – All negative  Non-DOT: 2 tested; Both negative  
DOT: 4 and 2 breathalyzers – Negative      DOT: None tested  



  

 

Community Relations Department 
Monthly Report – June 2018 

Prepared By: f{çvÉÄx f|ÅÑáÉÇ@VtÜàxÜ 

  Due to lack of a quorum, the scheduled Commission on Community Relations and Development 
meeting for Tuesday, June 12, 2018 was adjourned with no official business discussed.   The next 
scheduled meeting is Tuesday, August 14, 2018 at 6:00pm. 
 

 Community Relations received three (3) housing complaints, one (1) civil complaint, and one (1) request 
for assistance.  The alleged violations by citizens under the Minimum Housing/Landlord Tenant Laws 
included: three (3) housing complaints consisting of one (1) landlord/tenant matter – tenant non-payment 
for rental property, one (1) neighbor dispute – neighbor unsightly property/sanitation, and one (1) 
complaint against multi-family complex for breach of contractual amenity.   
 
The one (1) civil complaint consisted of assistance with an equitable claim related to a power of attorney 
declaration. One (1) request for assistance with rental payment for single-family household.  All 
complaints were submitted through the 311 GIS system or to the appropriate City Department for 
resolution or designated community/state resources. 
 

 On June 11th, the 2018 Summer Youth Employment Initiative (SYEI) program had thirty (30) youth 
employees to begin work assignments at various designated Worksites.  For the month of June, the 
youth employees also completed three (3) scheduled training sessions at Wayne Community College as 
part of the program’s comprehensive workforce development strategy.   
 
Track 1 Session is scheduled for June 11th to July 20th and will overlap for two weeks with Track 2 
Session between July 9th to July 20th.  Twenty-seven youth employees for Track 2 Session are scheduled 
to begin work assignments on July 9th and will end on August 18th at their various designated 
Worksites. 
 

 The Community Relations Department joined with the Wayne County Bar Association Young Lawyer’s 
Division, dedicated public servants from the branches of the Criminal Justice System and Community 
Activists within our City and County to host the 2018 Expungement Clinic on Saturday, June 30th from 
9:00am to 5:00pm at the Wayne County Courthouse.  During the Expungement Clinic, 324 Goldsboro 
and Wayne County residents participated and many were able to have their criminal records expunged 
and apply for employment.  Final count for actual expungements have not been tallied.  
 

 The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met on Wednesday, June 6th for the final GYC 
meeting/end of year celebration.  GYC members facilitated their State funded Mini-Grant Project at 
Wayne Community College June 18th to June 20th constructing mechanical flowers with the College’s 
Engineering Department.  GYC will not meet until September 5th due to summer break. 
 

 The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities met on Thursday, June 21st.  The next scheduled 
meeting is Thursday, August 16th at 12:00 pm.   

 
 

Housing 5 5 9 3 2 3 5

Consumer 1 2 0 0 3 2 1

Housing 5 0 5 2 3 1 7 5 1 3 5 7 4

Consumer 2 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2018 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2017 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr



 
 

     
 

                           Monthly Report- June 2018 
Prepared by:  Sherry Archibald, Director 

 Artistic Dance, Goldsboro Performing Arts, Drummer’s World and Ms. Robin’s Dance 
performed their annual recital in June.  Stage Struck presented their annual STARS camp 
and Dr. Wilding returned with his monthly Health & Wellness presentation. 

 Paramount staff provided administrative support to the Foundation’s fundraising drive. 
 A WRAL weather webcam has been placed on the roof of the Paramount. 
 The City of Goldsboro was well represented at the premiere of the Malpass Brothers 

Documentary on UNC-TV in June.   
 Director attended the American Dance Festival with cohorts from the South Arts Dance 

Touring Initiative; and staff attended the NC Presenters Consortium Summer Meeting in 
Asheville.  The theme and professional development circled around “Telling your story.”   

 Staff met with Wayne County Public Schools Administrators to discuss communication and 
collaborations; and they also met with Arts Council of Wayne Director, Wendy Walker, to 
discuss collaborations for the 2018/2019 series. 

 Paramount staff participated in the following meetings, presentations or training:  Dance 
Touring Initiative Conference Call, Paramount Technicians Meeting, Reading Between the 
Wines Committee meeting, United Way of Wayne County’s Marketing meeting and Board 
Meeting.    

 Expenses –June $24,298.00       Labor -   $20,054.61/Operational – $4,243.39      
Revenue  -June  $11,597.75       Rentals -$10,876.75  /Tickets $673.00/Concession $48.00 

 

 

 The Goldsboro Event Center was utilized for 12 uses in June including a wedding, 
presentation, reunion, banquet and several City sponsored functions.   Seven of the 12 
events were internal uses; therefore, non-income producing.  

 Staff are advertising for Building Attendants and Bartenders. 
 GEC Manager, Ben Farlow is providing daily tours for drop-in guests and contacting future 

renters for confirmation of rental details. 
 Expenses-June $7,072.73 Labor -   $5,683.95/Operational – $1,388.78     

Revenues-June $4,309.77  Rentals -$3,681.25 /Concessions-$628.52     

*March 2017 expenses reflect improvements to HVAC system   *October 2017 expense reflects utility bill paid twice 

  Jan‐18  Feb‐18  Mar18  April18  May18  June18  July18  Aug18  Sept18  Oct18  Nov18  Dec18 
Average 

2018 
Total 

Exp  $32,968  $25,012  $48,050  $39,962  $32,137  $24,298              $33,737  $202,427 

Rev  $16,549  $7,471  $35,001  $8,954  $15,408  $11,597              $15,830  $94,980 

  Jan‐17  Feb‐17  Mar17  April17  May17  June17  July17  Aug17  Sept17  Oct17  Nov17  Dec17 
Average 

2017 
Total 

Exp  $35,209   $28,009   $42,454  $25,801  $31,732  $18,825  $39,124  $23,925  $31,356  $44,428  $54,422  $32,621  $33,992  $407,906 

Rev  $12,929    $13,197   $21,544  $3,845  $22,670  $5,648  $6,097  $18,040  $3,454  $21,841  $17,422  $24,984  $14,305  $171,671 

  Jan‐18  Feb‐18  Mar18  April18  May18  June18  July18  Aug18  Sept18  Oct18  Nov18  Dec18 
Average 

2018 
Total 

Exp  $5,379  $7,310  $14,096  $14,484  $7,852  $7,072              $9,365  $56,093 

Rev  $2,890  $5,556  $7,526  $15,201  $9,980  $4,309              $7,577  $45,462 

  Jan‐17  Feb‐17  Mar17  April17  May17  June17  July17  Aug17  Sept17  Oct17  Nov17  Dec17 
Average 

2017 
Total 

Exp  $7,619  $6,442  $50,093  $8,627  $14,882  $9,201  $12,472  $8,056  $9,183  $17,808  $9,840  $14,042  $14,022  $168,265 

Rev  $2,100  $7,096  $8,792  $6,826  $15,356  $5,077  $9,924  $8,073  $6,221  $5,052  $13,174  $7,788  $7,956  $95,479 



 
Goldsboro Inspections Department 

Monthly Report – June 2018 
Prepared by:  Allen Anderson 

 
 

The valuation of all building permits issued during the month of June totaled $2,287,986.   
Seven (7) of these permits were new residential single-family dwellings at a valuation of 
$1,589,875. 
 
The valuation of all miscellaneous (Mechanical, gas, insulation, electrical, plumbing, fire, 
sprinkler, pool, tank, demolition, signs, business inspection, & itinerant merchant) permits 
issued during this time period totaled $1,442,849. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $50,859.  Of the permit fees collected for the 
month, $4,050 was collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month 
totaled $1,295. Business Registration fees collected $16,260 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 692 inspections for the month.  During the month of June five (5) 
business inspections were completed.  A total of 351 permits were issued for the month.  Thirty-
nine (39) plan reviews were completed for June. We now have a total of 152 residential 
structures in the Minimum Housing Process and 10 commercial structures in the Demolition by 
Neglect Process. 
 
 
  
2018  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  AVG 

Permit Valuation 

All Buildings (millions)  $10  $13  $3 $5 $5 $2       $6 
Residential (thousands)  $848  $518  $1345 $786 $1389 $1,589       $1,079 
Miscellaneous**(millions)  $2   $2  $2 $3 $2 $1       $2 
Permit Fees (thousands)  $31  $33  $30 $31 $48 $51       $37 
Inspections (total)  524  539  544 564 582 692        574 
Permits Issued (total)  258  263  284 295 418 351       312 
Plan Reviews Completed  75  41  52 74 85 39       61 
Minimum Housing in Process  163  163  143 152 152 152       154 
 
 
                           

2017  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  AVG 

Permit Valuation                
All Buildings (millions)  $11   $2  $5 $33 $9 $3 $3 $7 $23 $3 $2 $2 $9 
Residential (thousands)  $473   $442  $1m $1m $2m $1m $451 $0 $1m $2m $0 $39 $784 
Miscellaneous**(millions)  $5   $1  $6 $9 $2 $2 $1 $8 $10 $4 $1 $1 $4 
Permit Fees (thousands)  $31   $29  $31 $46 $35 $46 $42 $50 $51 $43 $25 $23 $38 
Inspections (total)  836  747  775 539 623 610 560 674 621 623 568 431 634 
Permits Issued (total)  384  350  353 297 383 339 303 353 263 307 246 197 315 
Plan Reviews Completed  43  57  59 57 79 64 53 51 56 70 52 44 57 
Minimum Housing in Process  194  190  197 195 198 182 177 178 182 172 155 155 181 

 



 
 

 

Downtown Development Department 
June 2018                                                  Prepared By:  Julie Metz, Director 
 
Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

 Staff continued to work through TIGER VIII developments and began design and scheduling meetings with the 
TA Loving team for the Center Street Streetscape project.   

 Staff met with (or conversed by email/phone) with 15 potential new property acquisition projects/business 
interests regarding downtown and 15 current business owners during the month. 

 Julie is part of the Strategic Plan Team and has met multiple times with the group monthly to develop the Plan.  
 Staff worked through activities related to the Union Station roof replacement. 
 Erin continued marketing outreach for Say I Do to Downtown. 
 Staff hosted a site visit by a bank conducting research for an investment project downtown. 
 Staff worked to close out the One Main Financial Grant for public art, expected to be complete mid‐July. 

 
Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

 Staff created ads for Go, Buzz, WGBR, 107.9, digital billboards and News‐Argus for upcoming city and DGDC 
events and filmed WGTV and WRAL segments. 

 Staff worked on budget closeout for FY 2018 throughout the month, concluding on June 19th. 
 Scott attended the Downtown Pharmacy opening on June 1st. 
 Julie attended the Metro Mayors Input Meeting on June 4th. 
 Julie attended the City Council Work Sessions/Meetings on June 4th and June 18th. 
 Scott attended the Merchants Association meeting on June 5th. 
 Scott met with Dr. Mike Harris (Miller School of Entrepreneurship at ECU) on June 5th. 
 Erin assisted Public Works staff in conducting applicant interviews on June 5th. 
 Scott attended the New Employee Orientation meeting on June 6th. 
 Staff attended the City of Goldsboro Website Training session on June 7th. 
 Julie attended the Malpass Brothers Program filming on June 7th. 
 Erin attended the Taste of Wayne Planning Committee meeting on June 11th. 
 Erin attended the Marketing Team Committee Meeting on June 12th.  
 Erin attended the Newcomer Orientation event at SJAFB on June 19th. 
 Scott attended the Merchants Association Executive Board meeting on June 19th. 
 Erin attended the NC Poultry Festival planning meeting on June 21st.  
 Staff attended the Large Staff Meeting on June 26th. 
 Julie attended a TA Loving Design Coordination meeting on June 29th.  

 
DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

 Staff facilitated and attended the following monthly meetings; DGDC Board (6/20), DGDC Executive Committee 
(6/13), DGDC Promotions Committee (6/12), DGDC EV Committee (6/12), DGDC Design Committee (6/12). 

 DGDC/Downtown Annual Sponsorship Campaign:  An effort to raise money to fund Center Street Jams and other 
DGDC Board downtown events and activities for the year. Staff assists with the administrative needs. 

 Staff facilitated use of Cornerstone Commons for the City‐wide Prayer Event held by Impact Teens on June 9th. 
 Staff organized the Center Street Jam featuring NightYears w/ Majesty Rose on June 14th. 
 Staff facilitated the Annual Dinner Planning Committee meeting on June 7th. 
 Staff organized the Center Street Jam featuring Soul Psychedelique on June 28th. 

 
Upcoming Events/Activities:  

 Center Street Jam featuring Fantastic Shakers on July 12th at 6:00 p.m. 
 StreetBeats: Acoustic Jam Session on July 13th at 5:00 p.m. 
 Center Street Jam featuring Jim Quick & Coastline on July 26th at 6:00 p.m. 
 StreetBeats: Acoustic Jam Session on July 27th at 5:00 p.m. 

 
Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased: 

 Downtown Pharmacy ribbon cutting on July 12th at 5:00 p.m. 
 Artistic Dance Academy – 228 N. Center Street – Coming Soon 
 The Firehouse (event space) – 109 E. Ash Street – Coming Soon 
 Barrique‐ 217 N. John Street‐ Coming Soon 



Information Technology 
Monthly Report – June 2018 

Prepared by: Jamie Metz 
 

   
 
 

 Completed weather camera configuration and install at the Paramount. Configured firewall and created 
user accounts to allow WRAL access. 

 Installed and configured replacement web filtering device. 
 Configured firewall with IP addresses from CBS17 to allow access to live video from City Hall roof 

camera. 
 Terminated Public Works fiber at Mobile Unit, Warehouse, Signal and Traffic, and Telephone Room.  
 Ordered and received body cameras for the Goldsboro Police Department. Installation will take place in 

July. 
 Repaired phone system hard drive failure at DR site to ensure phone system redundancy and backup. 
 Conducted website training to allow individual departments to update the website content pertaining to 

that specific department.  
 Setup training session for QS/1 staff with the QS/1 trainer and monitored progress. 
 Updated Email Archiver in preparation for replacement this Fall. 
 Installed and configured backup software for better management of our data at the primary and disaster 

recovery sites. 
 Updated E-Citation for Goldsboro Police Department. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

2018 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
                            

Tickets 
Opened 

578 535 568 494 408 458        

Tickets 
Closed 

504 544   648 496 389 468        

2017 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
                            

Tickets 
Opened 

492 427 530 357 349 410 367 538 403 520 461 401 439 

Tickets 
Closed 

483 448 492 344 326 401 356 543 409 470 427 380 427 



June 2018 Monthly Report PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT By  Richard E. A. Fletcher III

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

7.4 2.9 4.0 24.0 19.0 26.3 13.9
5.1 3.3 4.6 9.5 12.5 10.3 7.6
87 25 25 45 47 64 48.8
4 14 9 12 20 13 12.0
3 32 38 45 42 23 30.5

25 32 28 36 49 76 41.0

225 195 167 224 268 204 213.8
43 72 51 70 13 77 54.3

360 341 322 366 337 316 340.3
55$      47$      55$      55$      60$      60$      55.3

0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9
102 107 82 101 59 93 90.5
0.5 0.7 0.8 1.1 0.8 0.9 0.8

8 9 6 8 4 6 6.8

0 14 10 12 30 37 17.2
45 82 50 20 45 25 44.5

82.5 229 171 229 197 143 175.2
0 0 3 8.0 68.9 167.0 41.2
0 0 0 135 318 410 143.8

33.5 28.0 35.9 21.4 21.3 7.6 6.1 32.7 19.2 13.4 11.1 12.8 20.3
4.5 17.5 6.3 10.7 15.2 8.1 12.5 11.1 12.3 12.3 13.3 6.5 10.9
42 20 27 35 28 28 20 30 22 23 39 29 28.6
55 48 105 100 90 19 14 26 39 12 9 5 43.5
24 18 64 53 38 24 45 32 58 38 40 8 36.8
48 37 43 19 55 41 18 34 20 42 34 18 34.1

164 108 136 137 156 155 126 174 176 128 183 117 146.7
65 96 61 46 70 75 72 33 53 91 25 28 59.6

334 320 387 304 277 299 292 415 280 370 290 260 319.0
57$      51$      56$      49$      55$      58$      50$      68$      58$      60$      54$      41$      54.8

0.9 0.7 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.81 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9
70 86 83 107 116 88 81 117 110 106 88.5 111 97.0
0.7 0.8 0.9 0.8 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.87 0.81 1.04 1.16 0.9

3 6 3 5 6 2 8 5 6 3 5 5 4.8

15 25 11 13 5 17 24 17 13 6 13 15 14.5
57 42 52 48 57 24 72 64 46 95 41 10 50.7

144 113 110 60.5 246 128 142 65 93.6 155 160 132 129.1
0 0 0 16.0 28.0 8.0 23.5 12.0 5.0 26.0 36 0 12.9
0 0 0 101 123 211 266 182 190 175 72 0 110.0

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Bldg 

Maint.

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

Sign Repairs

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
s 

&
 

St
o

rm
w

at
e

r Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Streets Swept (miles)

2018

Bldg 

Maint.

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

Sign Repairs

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2017

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

e
ts

 &
 

St
o

rm
w

at
e

r Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Streets Swept (miles)

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing

D&C: Responded to 20 after hours calls for a total of 34.5 hours. Completed flushing water lines citywide June 15th. 
Streets & Storms: Cleared 37 catch basin w/new VacTruck; cleared vegetative overgrowth at BMP near fire station 4. 
Repaired storm drain issues on at Mulberry & Center St--installed new pipe, catch basisn and drop-in and poured new 
sidewalk.
Bldg. Maintenance:  Responded to 91 misc. items assisting other departments; removed and installed 277V 3-Phase 
transformer in-house--saved City $5K vs. contractor install.  Instrumental in preparations at old WA Foster--removed and 
installed 100'+ of chain link fence, cleaned and re-striped parking lot and cleaned out the gym. 



Public Utilities Department 
 

Monthly Report-  
June 2018 

 
Prepared by: Michael Wagner 

 
 

Water Reclamation Facility 
 
The Water Reclamation Facility operations are proceeding smoothly. The 
average daily flows for June were 7.837 MGD. All of the city’s 26 pump 
stations are operating well. 
 
Water Treatment Plant 
 
The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. The by-pass 
screen on the Neuse River was opened as we wait to begin the annual river 
maintenance dredge.   
 
Compost Facility 
 
Nine hundred and fourteen cubic yards of compost/mulch was sold in 
June 2018. On June 8, 2018, the trommel screen caught on fire and was 
deemed a total loss.  
 
 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day 
(MGD) and are average daily flows for each month. 
 

2018 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 6.625 6.232 6.262 6.017 6.303 6.83       6.378 

Sewer** 7.66 10.45 9.97 9.41 10.77 7.83       9.34 

CY 
Compost 

395 876 686 913 1011 914       799 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 

 
2017 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.092 4.974 4.509 4.836 5.080 5.088 5.731 5.403 5.312 5.261 5.024 5.500 5.151 

Sewer** 10.44 8.47 8.21 10.25 12.35 9.06 6.97 6.85 8.41 7.16 6.49 7.24 8.49 

CY 
Compost 

54 546 845 1484 923 836 496 394 538 564 86 104 572 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Prepared	by:		Kaye	Scott,	Finance	Director

Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Collected

Tax Revenues 15,806,246$ 16,338,000$         15,929,949$      97.50%
License & Permits 349,765        365,400                374,541             102.50%
Revenue Other Agencies 18,749,718   18,224,751           22,922,973        125.78%
Charges for Services 4,908,294     5,196,768             4,616,248          88.83%
Capital Returns 364,979        310,854                357,267             114.93%
Miscellaneous Revenues 575,905        1,148,000             275,098             23.96%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation 7,283,738             
     Total 40,754,907$ 48,867,511$         44,476,076$      91.01%

Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Collected

Mayor/Council 299,525$      396,091$              383,373$           96.79%
City Manager 807,874 1,372,448 832,321 60.64%
Human Resources Management 539,771 598,519 584,949 97.73%
Community Relations 109,851 168,539 162,872 96.64%
Paramount Theater 447,612 464,980 428,310 92.11%
Goldsboro Event Center 158,388 146,961 127,600 86.83%
Inspections 826,716 926,411 893,538 96.45%
Downtown Development 388,273 400,304 344,009 85.94%
Information Technology 1,400,518 1,742,250 1,275,008 73.18%
Public Works - Adm. 394,320 444,715 395,245 88.88%
Garage 2,038,392 2,230,402 2,065,211 92.59%
Garage Credits (1,248,665) (1,650,000) (1,100,253) 66.68%
Building & Traffic Maint. 559,401 539,164 525,353 97.44%
Cemetery 288,848 336,786 316,921 94.10%
Finance 1,188,198 1,330,532 1,256,283 94.42%
Office Supplies Credits (6,164) (9,000) (6,272) 69.69%
Planning & Redevelopment 1,480,504 1,359,268 998,200 73.44%
Postage Credits (24,526) (30,000) (20,560) 68.53%
Streets & Storms - General 1,694,293 1,909,101 1,538,817 80.60%
Streets & Storms - Utilities 662,518 529,200 491,111 92.80%
Street Paving 217,125 150,804 150,804 100.00%
Solid Waste 2,846,034 2,886,473 2,851,231 98.78%
Engineering 973,412 974,627 943,188 96.77%
Fire Department 5,887,378 7,602,315 7,484,990 98.46%
Police Department 8,663,965 10,130,022 9,089,358 89.73%
Special Expense Fees 5,919,939 9,016,255 8,939,368 99.15%
Parks & Recreation 3,070,030 4,103,892 3,565,470 86.88%
Golf Course 587,566 796,452 727,451 91.34%
     Total 40,171,095$ 48,867,511$         45,243,896$      92.58%

Finance	Department
				Monthly	Report	‐	June	2018

FY 2017-18
GENERAL FUND



Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Collected

Charges for Services 15,550,278$ 15,640,500$         15,715,383$      100.48%
Capital Returns 55,179          21,193                   42,255               199.38%
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,354,939     930,080                4,020,704          432.30%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation 7,972,638$           0.00%
     Total 16,960,396$ 24,564,411$         19,778,342$      80.52%

Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Collected

Distribution & Collections 2,671,090$   3,548,176$           3,387,183$        95.46%
Water Treatment Plant 4,582,319     4,771,976             4,144,182          86.84%
Water Reclamation Plant 7,631,678     7,629,742             7,056,925          92.49%
UF - Capital 783,707        7,655,199             4,430,159          57.87%
Compost Facility 531,428        959,318                773,615             80.64%
     Total 16,200,222$ 24,564,411$         19,792,064$      80.57%

Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Collected

Tax Revenues 69,371$        71,236$                72,890$             102.32%
Capital Revenue 201               90                          613                    681.11%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation 11,323                   
Total 69,572          82,649                   73,503               88.93%

Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Spent

Downtown District 53,889$        82,649$                58,131$             70.33%
     Total 53,889$        82,649$                58,131$             70.33%

Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Collected

Occupancy Tax/Civic Center 670,323$      675,000$              628,144$           93.06%
Occupancy Tax/Travel & Tourism 167,588        165,000                159,123             96.44%
County of Wayne Occupancy Tax 126,465        185,059                206,238             
Capital Returns/Misc./Property Sale 4,596$          42,052$                8,338$               0.00%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation -$                  761,047$              
     Total 968,972$      1,828,158$           1,001,843$        54.80%

Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Collected

Civic Center 802,945$      1,462,643$           1,210,795$        82.78%
Travel & Tourism 242,565        365,515                361,393             98.87%
     Total 1,045,510$   1,828,158$           1,572,188$        86.00%

OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

UTILITY FUND

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT FUND



Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Collected

Stormwater Fee -$                  1,073,672$           661,520$           61.61%
Loan Proceeds (Equip.) 596,682                568,924$           95.35%
Total -                    1,670,354             1,230,444          73.66%

Actual to Date Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Spent

Stormwater Division -$                  1,670,354$           935,562$           56.01%
     Total -$                  1,670,354$           935,562$           56.01%

STORMWATER FUND





Ge LDS BORe) 
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT-JUNE 2018 

Prepared by: __ G=u ...... y..:.M'"""-'. A..:.:.:.nd:.e""r'""s~on:.:.:,....,P._, ..... E:::.·--

Stoney Creek Greenway 
• Staff is awaiting right of way certification form from NC Department of Transportation; 
• The design process is 60% complete. 

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Bid opening scheduled for July 3, 20 18; 
• Start of construction anticipated Summer 20 18. 

Center/Holly Street Water Tank Painting 
• Bid opening was conducted February 9, 2018; 
• Bids received were over budgeted amount due to lead paint issue; 
• Staff is coordinating having a lead paint evaluation performed; 
• Project anticipated to advertise in October 2018. 

SJAFB Sewer Outfall Improvements 
• Staff is preparing design plans and bid documents to replace the sewer line from SJAFB to the Stoney 

Creek Sewer Outfall; 
• Staff is monitoring the SJAFB flow meter to estimate amount of bypass pumping required; 
• Anticipated bid advertisement is September 2018. 

Glenwood Trail Storm Drain Replacement Project 
• City Council awarded a contract for $257,710 to Smith-Rowe, LLC on May 21 , 2018; 
• Preconstruction conference was held June 20,2018 with a notice to proceed date set for July 23, 2018; 
• Contract completion date is December 24, 20 18; 
• A $285,000 Golden Leaf Foundation Grant provides funding. 

2018 Street Improvement Project 
• Field survey work is complete and the design phase is in progress for this paving project pertaining to Oak 

Hill Drive from North Berkeley Boulevard to Green Drive and East Chestnut Street from South Slocumb 
Street to South Leslie Street; 

• Design phase is 90% complete; 
• Acquisition of right-of-way is required. 

2018 Street Resurfacing 
• Staff is preparing a detailed cost estimate for the approved list of street segments; 
• Anticipated bid advertisement is July 2018. 

Beech Street Sanitary Sewer Improvements 
• Staff is evaluating if this project can be amended to the Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation Project 

(CWSRF). 

Best Management Practices (BMPs) Inspections 
• Approximately 300 BMPs have been approved and 254 BMPS have been constructed to date; 
• All BMP inspections have been completed through the month June 2018. 



Goldsboro Fire Department  
Monthly Report – June 2018 

 

Page 1 of 1 – June 2018 Monthly Report  

Report Prepared By: ]ÉáxÑ{ W|åÉÇ JD/CL 
 
 

 

Fire Prevention and Outreach 
 June 2nd – Community Service – Cruise the Neuse – Neuse River – Swift Water Rescue 

Team 
 June 6th – Community Service - Car Seat Safety Check  
 June 7th – Public Education – Cherry Hospital 
 June 9th – Truck Display – Goldsboro Pediatric Dentistry & Orthodontics 
 June 9th – Truck Display and Sprinkler – Optimist Kids Fun Day – Cornerstone Commons 
 June 14th – Community Outreach – Sprinkler Fun Days – Cornerstone Commons  
 June 14th – Community Outreach – Center Street Jam – John Street 
 June 16th – Public Education – Deacon Jones Ford 
 June 20th – Station Tour – Station 1 
 June 20th – Community Service - Car Seat Safety Check  
 June 21st – Public Education – Health and Wellness Fair – WorkSource East 
 June 21st – Community Outreach – Sprinkler Fun Days – Cornerstone Commons 
 June 26th – Community Outreach – Summer Splash Days – West Haven Apartments 
 June 27th – Community Outreach – Summer Splash Days – The Grand at Day Point 

Apartments 
 June 27th – Community Outreach – Summer Splash Days – Lincoln Homes 
 June 28th – Community Outreach – Sprinkler Fun Days – Cornerstone Commons 
 June 28th – Community Outreach – Center Street Jam – John Street 
 June 29th – Community Outreach – Summer Splash Days – Fairview Homes 
 
 

Working Structure Fires 
 6/7 – 917 Carver Dr. 
 6/14 – 2003 Rose St. 

Working Vehicle Fires 
 6/16 – 1303 N Berkeley Blvd.

 

2018 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.
Total Incidents: 234 165 196 197 208 182 197
Structure Fires: 3 6 2 2 6 2 4

EMS Calls: 63 52 63 68 89 69 67
Vehicle  Accidents: 49 22 39 27 38 34 35

Fire Alarms: 49 34 44 35 38 38 40
O ther: 70 51 48 65 51 39 54

Training Hours: 2683 2871 2149 2172 1962 1878 2286
Safety Car Seat Checks: 2 10 10 9 10 4 8

Inspections: 52 67 68 95 102 106 82
2017 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 268 227 226 206 212 194 204 177 210 218 192 204 212
Structure Fires: 3 4 6 2 2 3 4 4 0 4 4 7 4

EMS Calls: 112 100 99 84 71 69 70 65 86 88 52 79 81
Vehicle  Accidents: 33 35 40 35 38 37 29 27 34 43 38 40 36

Fire Alarms: 53 35 38 36 43 43 55 42 43 36 36 32 41
O ther: 67 53 43 49 58 42 46 39 47 47 62 46 50

Training Hours: 3209 2870 3457 2153 2001 2020 1532 1686 1587 2496 1939 1286 2186
Safety Car Seat Checks: 6 16 10 8 12 11 5 13 53 6 2 6 12

Inspections: 31 57 53 56 113 120 99 113 70 51 63 37 72

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning.



 

Total UCR offenses (homicide, rape, robbery, assault, burglary, motor vehicle theft and 
arson) for June 2018 were 257 compared to 270 for May 2018.      

Property with an estimated value of $96,736 was reported stolen while property with an 
estimated value of $24,063 was recovered.

Officers arrested 184 people and 380 citations were issued during the month. There  
were 66 drug -related charges.

There were 2 report(s) of assault on an officer. 

Revenue collected for June 2018 included:
Police Reports
Fingerprints
Special Events 

2018 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug. Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG
OFFENSE
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0

Rape(&attempts) 2 1 0 2 1 0 6 1.0

Robbery 1 10 7 5 4 6 33 5.5

Aggravated Assault 6 12 11 13 15 13 70 11.7

Simple Assault 34 29 55 34 32 32 216 36.0

Breaking & Entering 40 27 23 31 37 41 199 33.2

Larceny 129 115 126 134 132 121 757 126.2

Motor Vehicle Theft 7 4 7 7 7 5 37 6.2
Arson 0 2 0 0 0 1 3 0.5

Fraud 46 33 22 34 42 38 215 35.8

TOTALS 265 233 251 260 270 257 1536 256.0

2017 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug. Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG
OFFENSE

Homicide 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 2 3 1 11 0.9

Rape(&attempts) 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.1
Robbery 8 6 9 2 3 10 5 10 2 7 7 12 81 6.8

Aggravated Assault 17 23 25 12 18 13 9 20 21 21 20 14 213 17.8

Simple Assault 24 29 35 38 31 29 48 46 42 24 23 18 387 32.3

Breaking & Entering 24 25 29 45 35 23 34 18 34 23 42 43 375 31.3

Larceny 145 104 126 105 135 122 140 142 122 131 113 141 1526 127.2

Motor Vehicle Theft 7 1 9 3 4 9 7 8 0 2 8 7 65 5.4

Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 0.3

Fraud 36 30 37 54 44 31 34 39 41 30 30 27 433 36.1

TOTALS 262 218 270 259 274 238 277 283 262 240 247 265 3095 257.9

Goldsboro Police Department
Monthly Report - June 2018

$200.00
$50.00

Report Prepared by:  Michael D.West         MDW/KB

UCR COMPARISON & TREND

$25.00



GOLDSBORO PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT –June 2018  

Prepared by:  W. Scott Barnard SB/FLB/PM 

Goldsboro Parks & Rec hosted the 6th Annual Cruise the Neuse with 150 participants.  Some paddlers came from as far as Wilmington for the event.  Thanks to help from the 
Goldsboro Fire Department for their hard work before and during the event to ensure a safe, fun trip for all.   

 

 

2018  JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN  JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC  MONTHLY 
AVG Herman Park and 

W A Foster Centers             
Program Revenue  $3,906  $3,821  $2,091  $3,153  $2,899  $12,306  $  $  $  $  $  $  $4,696 

Rental Revenue   $1,610  $1,385  $4,572  $3,927   $2,625  $2,647  $   $   $   $   $   $  $2,795 

Facility Usage  11,813  10,235  11,470  13,633   10,862   10,576               11,432 

             

Specialized Rec. 
and Senior Citizens, 
Pools                 

Program Revenue  $191  $264  $311  $231  $850   10,281   $   $  $  $   $  $    $2,022 

Facility Usage  5,890  2,220  1,616  3,107   3,662   6,369                 3,811 

                 

Athletics and Field 
Picnic Shelters, MSCX                 

Program Revenue  $1,500  $2,430  $1,560  $195  $920   $3,880   $   $   $   $   $   $  $1,748 

Field/Shelter Rental  $0  $60  $0  $1,165  $1,250   $1,480  $  $   $   $   $  $  $660 

Facility Usage  3,459  9,382  3,605  5,315  9,725  4,867           6,059 

                 

Golf Course                 

Revenues  $44,090  $30,092  $30,483  $64,936  $38,070  $47,941  $  $  $  $  $  $  $42,602 

Expenditures  $44,811  $60,293  $49,545  $56,766  $103,701  $56,726  $  $  $  $  $  $  $61,974 

                 

Special Events                 

Sponsorships  $1,500  $0  $  $200  $225  $200  $  $      $  $  $355 

Attendance  0  0  2,000  215         50  215          414 

TOTAL REVENUE  $51,297  $38,052  $39,017  $73,607  $46,614  $78,535  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR    $327,122 

2017  JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN  JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC  MONTHLY 
AVG Herman Park and 

W A Foster Centers             

Program Revenue  $2,637  $5,031  $4,024  $3,176   $2,086   $9,770   $18,262   $8,288   $965   $761   $170   $533  $4,642 

Rental Revenue   $975  $2,130  $2,425  $2,250   $2,354  $4,434  $5,967   $5,430   $6,015   $2,557   $1,695   $2,760  $3,250 

Facility Usage  6,330  7,936  7,199  7,708   6,288   10,697   14,452  14,299  7,340  10,695   8,750   9,396  9,258 

                 

Specialized Rec. 
and Senior Citizens                 

Program Revenue  $404  $269  $258  $250   $147   $96   $122   $129  $262  $383   $340  $370           $253 

Facility Usage  1,769  2,591  2,565  2,740   2,682   2,702   1,423   2,445  1,990  2,755   2,076  1,451  2,266 

                 

Athletics and Field 
Picnic Shelters                 

Program Revenue  $180  $1,530  $2,784  $2,280  $2,160   $2,730   $1,030   $2,775   $3,100   $1,400   $3,720   $975  $2,056 

Field/Shelter Rental  $0  $60  $0  $0  $0   $0  $0  $0   $0   $0   $0  $0  $5 

Facility Usage  1,848  1,781  1,822  2,132   3,819  1,002  1,038  804   1,210   5,410   920  1,314  1,925 

             

Golf Course                 

Revenues  $44,831  $37,874  $41,477  $47,999  $58,863  $69,605  $73,635  $44,073  $46,465  $51,594  $33,363  $17,080  $47,239 

Expenditures  $50,936  $44,370  $21,259  $6,435  $71,935  $50,891  $75,399  $60,365  $66,122  $56,740  $42,567  $54,415  $50,120 

                 

Special Events                 

Sponsorships  $0  $0  $1,200  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $26,400  0  $175  $0  $2,315 

Attendance  0  0  150  350  11  400  745  400  13,225  1,700  35  25          1,420 

TOTAL REVENUE  $49,027  $46,894  $50,968  $55,955  $65,610  $86,935  $99,016  $60,695  $56,810  $56,695  $39,288  $21,718 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR    $689,611 



 
Travel & Tourism Department 

Monthly Report – June 2018 
Prepared by:  Ashlin Glatthar 

 

 152 inquiries were fulfilled for the month of June by the TTO— 84 incoming phone calls, 43 visitors to the office, and 25 e-inquiries. 175 

promotional items were donated to groups staying in local hotels.   

 Total hotel revenue generated in May was $1,782,092, which is down 5.3% YOY. June earnings not released yet.  

 For the month, TTO Facebook page has had 179 new page likes. Instagram page has 27 new followers. Twitter page has gained 4 new 

followers.  

 On June 1, Ashlin assisted the City Manager with second round interviews for the PIO position.   

 NC Sports Association held its quarterly meeting in Atlantic Beach on June 9th and it was attended by Parks & Rec, on behalf of the joint 

member ship with TTO. The meeting was to brainstorm cost-effectiveness of sporting event tradeshows in upcoming year, as well as 

network with other tourism offices and Parks & Rec divisions.  

 Ashlin finalized the contracts for Jerrod Niemann to headline the NC Poultry Festival, as well as confirm the annual subscription for the 

services of CrowdRiff. Onboarding training and calls are being coordinated for July with TTO.  

 TTO met with MSgt David Nickel at the 916th of SJAFB to discuss hotelier issues with a specific Goldsboro hotel. Ashlin learned of the 

issue and met with the unit to figure out how to improve the reservists experience when here for their monthly training. Keeping the 

reservists local in the Goldsboro-Wayne County market is ideal; however, the 916th and SJAFB’s contracting office is not interested in 

working with the “difficult” staff at this unnamed hotel.  

 Ashlin continues to work with Parks & Rec to secure new sponsors and partners for the NC Poultry Festival. Two billboard companies have 

agreed to comp certain amount of rental fees, and TTO is working to secure support from Lowes, Seegars, One Main Financial, Publix, and 

Ram-Rent-All.  

 Parks & Rec and TTO met with Olympic Karate Academy of Goldsboro to learn of their regional tournament opportunity. They hosted their 

first regionally sanctioned tournament in April 2018, and it drew 200 athletes as far as Virginia and South Carolina. Our organizations are 

brainstorming venue options, like WA Foster, and dates for May 2019 to host the event.  

 On June 12th, the consultant for HVS who is conducting the feasibility study came to Goldsboro for the site visit. The visit consisted of a 

tour of the Maxwell Center, Multi-Sports Complex, major thoroughfares, top-performing hotels, and downtown. The initial, tabulated 

findings will be available on July 13th.  

 On June 15th, the NC African American Music Trail gained new presence with the completion of the mural on the side of the Laughing Owl 

restaurant. The mural was dedicated at the Jazz on John St. event hosted by the Arts Council of Wayne County. Ashlin is working with the 

NC Arts Council to have this site added to the website and printed literature.  

 Ashlin hosted Our State magazine on June 19th and June 28th for projects related to their new digital series and themed publications needing 

story pitches.  

 Ashlin continues to work with team Grow Goldsboro to progress the development of the City’s strategic plan.  

 TTO attended the biannual large staff meeting at the Maxwell Center on June 26th.  

Occupancy Tax Collections YTD 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2017-18 $81,794 $70,849 $71,323 $66,920 $68,268 60,726 $43,748 $51,800 $53,393 $68,272 $69,725 $78,449 $785,269 $65,439 

2016-17 $69,073 $77,434 $67,869 $58,613 $86,744       $87,662 $63,904 $60,529 $75,368 $68,577 $64,312 $64,218 $844,303 $70,359 

2015-16 $61,028 $63,983 $60,865 $59,833 $38,804 $76,708 $51,604 $40,667 $53,901 $74,014 $64,909 $66,722 $712,498   $59,375 
 



T





















RESOLUTION NO. 2018-37 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY BARRY DRISCOLL  
AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

FOR 10 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Barry Driscoll retires on August 1, 2018 as Chief Treatment Plant Operator at the 
Water Treatment Plant in the Public Utilities Department at the City of Goldsboro with 10 years of 
service; and 

WHEREAS, Barry began his career with the City of Goldsboro on November 1, 2006 as a Water 
Plant Superintendent with the Public Utilities Department; and  

WHEREAS, Barry resigned on February 19, 2008 and was re-hired on November 2, 2009 as a 
Water Plant Operator; 

WHEREAS, On November 28, 2009, Barry was promoted to Chief Treatment Plant Operator at 
the Water Treatment Plant in the Public Utilities Department where he has served until his retirement; and 

WHEREAS, Barry has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has 
gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Barry Driscoll 
their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. We express our deep appreciation and gratitude for the dedicated service rendered during
Barry’s tenure with the City of Goldsboro.

2. We offer Barry our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in his
future endeavors.

3. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of July, 2018.

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

_______________________________ ______________________________ 
City Attorney City Manager 

Item U 


	Agenda 7-16-18
	ws Item e  Downtown Parking Sign Work Session Item 7-16-2018
	Item A. 1 Special Meeting Minutes 5 14 18 Budget
	Item A.2 Special Meeting Minutes 5 31 18 Budget
	Item B Bruce Kornegay Retirement Resolution
	Item C  Willette Davis Retirement Resolution
	Item F  Z-10-18 Lane PH
	Item G  CU-6-18 Price PH
	Item H  CU-7-18 Patel PH
	Item I  Public Hearing - Police Evidence - 7-16-18
	Item J  2018-2019 Annual Action Plan Agenda Memo (Public Hearing)
	Item K  Z-9-18 WCDA Rec
	Item L  CU-4-18 Reavis Rec
	Item M CU-5-18 Floars Rec
	Item N  Davita Dialysis Rec
	Item O  Surplus Prop Sale Bright and Walnut
	Item P-1 Contract Award for Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehab. - FB 2018-004
	Item P-2 PhaseIVSewerRehab
	Item Q-1  Outstanding POs FY 2018-19
	Item Q-2 Purchase order reappropriation FY 18-19
	Item R Tourism Council Appointment
	Item S  Monthly Reports Cover Sheet
	Item S-1 HR Monthly Report
	Item S-2  CR Monthly Report
	Item S-3  Paramount_GEC Monthly Report
	Item S-4 Inspections Monthly Report
	Item S-5  Downtown Monthly Report
	Item S-6  IT Monthly Report June 2018
	Item S-7 PW Council Report  - Maintenance (June 2018)
	Item S-8 PW Council Report  - Utilities Jun 2018
	Item S-9 Finance Monthly Report
	Item S-10 Planning Monthly Report
	Item S-11  Engineering Monthly Report
	Item S-12 Fire Monthly Report
	Item S-13 Police Monthly Report
	Item S-14  Parks and Rec Monthly Report
	Item S-15 Tourism Monthly Report
	Item T ROW Reimb Central Hts Realign
	Item U Barry Driscoll Retirement Resolution



